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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are an
integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for
international sports brands. We have two broad lines of
businesses, namely Manufacturing Business and Distribution
and Retail Business, with geographical markets spanning over
Europe, North America, Mainland China and Hong Kong. We are

the owner of the trademark “Diadora” in Mainland China, Hong

Kong and Macau.

The Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange since 6 September 2006.
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BEHAEE Financial

Highlights

BELIEFEHRKER Key Financial Information for the Last Five Years
BE+=-A=t+—-RLEE/
R+=A=+-H
For the year ended 31 December/
As at 31 December
—E-——f T8 CZ—T-TF C"ETHhFE ZTENE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
MERE Financial Performance
(F#&x) (HK$°000)
&= Revenue 3,077,258 3,199,934 2,869,282 2,578,833 2,998,360
mEmR (BB Operating profit/(loss) 124,556 (2,952) 142,551 173,038 96,020
W& P 18 %1 A1 )& 7 Profit before income tax 153,619 8,585 151,376 180,215 103,916
BESEERERN Profit/(loss) from continuing
(B#E) operations 111,266 (20,944) 117,061 141,696 59,865
CRIEEEERERN  Profit/(loss) from discontinued
(F#@) operations 8,761 161,627 (44,260)  (34,681) (33,091
FERF Profit for the year 120,027 140,683 72,801 107,015 26,774
BREFEAEMLRR Profit attributable to equity
holders 150,185 230,196 120,472 121,539 33,325
B AR R Financial Position
(F#&x) (HK$’000)
FRBEE Non-current assets 989,087 846,255 868,722 920,750 1,008,239
RBEE Current assets 1,846,459 2,041,171 1,950,941 1,740,662 1,768,929
REBEE Current liabilities 625,013 720,468 686,873 571,674 732,963
RBEEFE Net current assets 1,221,446 1,320,703 1,264,068 1,168,988 1,035,966
EEAE Total assets 2,835,546 2,887,426 2,819,663 2,661,412 2,777,168
EELERRY Total assets less current
=L liabilities 2,210,533 2,166,958 2,132,790 2,089,738 2,044,205
s Total equity 2,199,594 2,151,088 2,127,568 2,087,643 2,029,194
BeRELZEY Cash and cash equivalents
REEHIR and bank deposits with
BB=EAZ initial terms of over three
RITFER months 976,665 810,568 782,840 674,065 363,272
EEEEZ Operation Indicators
BFEREER Gross profit margin from
ZEFIE (%) continuing operations (%) 21.7 241 26.4 26.9
SEKEEKZF Net profit/(loss) margin from
AE/ (EE) 2 (%) continuing operations (%) 0.7) 4.1 55 2.0
BBEEELLE %) Gearing ratio (%)" 0.6 0.2 21 3.3 5.6
TEN L (£3) Current ratio (times) 3.0 2.8 2.8 3.0 2.4
EWiERzEBEH(R) Trade receivable sales
period (days) 45 50 68 70 77
FEZBEEH(A) Inventory sales period (days) 83 80 71 79 71
it Note:

A BEEELRNRITEEARBRALES -

—E-—EFR
4 2012 Annual Report

XEREZERERQA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

A

Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total bank borrowings and

total equity.
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FEHE Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to announce the annual
results of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Manufacturing Business

The year 2012 has been a year of weak growth for most
developed countries, and one of slowing economic growth for the
developing nations. The sovereign debt crisis in Europe and policy
uncertainties in the U.S. have constrained demand for
manufactured goods from developing nations. Europe has spent
the last two years struggling to manage sovereign debt problems.
So far, the austerity measures undertaken by European countries
have mostly contained the sovereign debt problems. However, the
side effect of the austerity measures implemented to rein in
spending by governments was an essentially flat GDP growth in
the European Union (“EU”) during 2012. As most of the Group’s
manufactured products are exported and sold to Europe, the
lower demand there resulted in reduction in revenue generated by
our manufacturing business. To broaden revenue sources and
avoid over-reliance on sportswear garments, we are diversifying
our manufacturing business to include fashion garments as well.

On the cost side of the ledger, labour costs in Mainland China
continued to rise in the past year. Mainland China has entered
into a long-term period of moderate inflation which is an
unavoidable stage of China’s industrialization. To mitigate this risk
factor, we have been actively expanding production capacities in
Vietnam and Cambodia. This together with the management’s
ongoing efforts in cost control, contributed to a higher operating
profit from the manufacturing business in 2012 than that in 2011
despite a lower revenue. Going forward, the Group will continue to
focus on the expansion of its production capacities in Vietham and
Cambodia.
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Distribution and Retail Business

The sportswear market in Mainland China remained challenging
and competitive and was still under adjustment period. Problems
with excess inventory and heavy discounting continued to persist
in Mainland China sportswear industry in 2012, with unavoidable
negative effects on profitability for our distributors and our self-
owned shops. As a result, our distribution and retail business for
Umbro and Diadora products did not perform as well as expected.
We mitigated the negative impact on the Group through sound
planning and being proactively responsive to changes in the
market. Furthermore, we have continued to enhance the efficiency
of our retail channels by strictly controlling new shop openings,
closing low-efficiency shops and revamping existing shops. The
Group has also worked closely with the brand owner of Umbro to
overcome the difficulties we currently face in the challenging
environment.

Our retail business in Hong Kong has made a profit in 2012,
attributable to the vibrant local retail market especially brought by
the influx of Mainland tourists and our management team’s
continuous efforts in shop restructuring and cost control. However,
high shop rental has eroded profitability from sales growth in
2012. Economy of scale and high rental problems are still our
main concerns. We plan to prudently continue to expand our retail
business in Hong Kong.

Business Diversification

In view of the rising disposal income of Mainland China citizens,
the demand for high-end fashion in Mainland China and Hong
Kong is expected to continue to grow. To capture this business
opportunity, the Group has entered into a subscription agreement
(“Subscription Agreement”) in August 2011 with Shine Gold
Group which is engaged in the retail of fashion wears and
accessories. Shine Gold Group has a self-managed retail network
for self-owned brands “D-mop”, “Blues Heroes”, “Loveis” etc in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, for brands under exclusive
distribution rights, including “Y-8” in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, “moussy” and “SLY” in Hong Kong, and for brands under
non-exclusive distribution rights, including “AZUL by moussy” and
“SHEL’ TTER” in Hong Kong.
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FEHE Chairman’s Statement

Dividend Payment

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012,
together with payment of an interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per
ordinary share, representing a total payout of HK$88.9 million, or
a distribution of approximately 60% of the current year’s profit
attributable to equity shareholders. The Group will strive to
maintain a stable dividend payout ratio which will not be less than
30% of profit attributable to equity shareholders. Depending on
the needs of capital expenditure and cash position of the Group,
the Board may adjust upwards of the payout ratio.

Outlook

In 2013, there are a number of uncertainties that the markets are
facing. The US Congress needs to agree on a sustainable fiscal
package before the debt ceiling deadline is reached once again at
the end of May. Asian economies have to adapt to a new
currency regime with the Japanese Yen’s devaluation exceeding
20% during the past few months. Markets are also watching
closing how the EU resolves the political and economic problems
it faces. We will continue to be cautious in our business strategy,
closely observing developments in the market. Apart from the
uncertainties of the economy, there are no major sports events
during 2013. Therefore, pressure on our revenue in 2013 would
still remain high. We believe that the pressure on our revenue will
be alleviated in 2014 when the FIFA World Cup is held. On the
cost side, we expect that our margin will be further improved as a
result of better operational efficiency and a higher proportion of
production being carried out in Vietham and Cambodia.

Regarding the sportswear distribution and retail business in
Mainland China, the environment is still very tough. It may take
one to two years for the market to consume the excess inventory.
Our strategy is to scale down our sales network to minimise the
loss.
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Shine Gold Group’s business restructuring has been completed in
2012 by streaming operations and closing low-efficiency shops. In
2013, we are investing further in our self-owned brands through
opening more exclusive shops in Hong Kong. We are also actively
planning to open more shops in Mainland China for licensed
brands. Generally speaking, we believe rentals shall remain high
and the consuming market has showed sign of a slowdown. The
market situation is therefore expected to remain challenging.

| would like to thank the Board and all of our dedicated

employees for their continued loyalty, diligence, professionalism,
and contributions to the Group.

LI Kwok Tung Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2013
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Overall Review

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has recorded a
revenue of HK$3,077.3 million (2011: HK$3,199.9 million) from
continuing operations, representing a decrease of 3.8%.

Gross profit margin slightly increased to 22.1% in 2012 (2011:
21.7%). The increase in gross profit margin was mainly resulted
from cost control and improved production efficiency. We also
started to shift the production from the Mainland China to Vietnam
and Cambodia where the labour cost and overhead costs are
relatively lower.

Operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
HK$124.6 million (2011: operating loss of HK$3.0 million). The
significant increase in operating profit in 2012 was mainly
attributable to the impairment loss on intangible asset related to
“Diadora” trademark of HK$112.0 million being charged to the
consolidated income statement in 2011 whereas there was no
such impairment recorded in 2012. Excluding such impairment
loss on intangible assets, operating profit would have been
HK$109.0 million in 2011.

Profit attributable to the shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2012 was HK$150.2 million (2011: HK$230.2 million).
The significant decrease in profit attributable to the shareholders
was mainly attributable to the one-off income arising from the
business transfer of the Umbro business in 2011, amounting to
HK$214.5 million whereas there was no such income recorded in
2012.

Excluding such discontinued operations of the distribution of
Umbro Products (as described in the section headed
“Discontinued Operations” below) and the impairment loss on
intangible assets in both years, profit attributable to the
shareholders would have been increased by 27.4% to HK$141.4

million in 2012 (2011: HK$111.1 million).

The Board has declared and paid the interim dividend of HK3.0
cents per Share during the year. In consideration of the strong net
cash position and the continued cash inflow from operations, the
Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Business Review

The Group is an integrated manufacturer, distributor and retailer
for renowned sports brands. The financial performances of the two
business segments, namely “Manufacturing Business” and

“Distribution and Retail Business” are summarised as below.

Manufacturing Business

The Group’s Manufacturing Business operates mainly on OEM
arrangement for various renowned sports brands. Most of the
Group’s products are exported and sold to Europe, Mainland
China and other countries around the world. The Group has a
long history and a remarkable position in sportswear garment
manufacturing, and has established long term business

relationship with its key customers.

In 2012,
Revenue from Manufacturing Business decreased by 3.7% to
HK$2,829.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$2,937.7 million), accounting for 91.8% of the Group’s total
91.8%).
countries have been continuously impacting the Group’s

the global economic environment remained tough.

revenue (2011: The poor economies of European

Manufacturing Business.

Gross profit from Manufacturing Business was HK$592.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$591.5 million).
The segmental gross profit margin slightly increased to 20.9% in
2012 (2011: 20.1%) as a result of the management’s efforts in
enhancing labour efficiency and controlling manufacturing
overheads. The PRC government’s policy to enhance labour
income in order to stimulate the domestic demand will keep the
labour salary in Mainland China on increasing. Therefore, the
Group is actively expanding its production capacity in Vietnam and
Cambodia where labour costs are more reasonable to fulfill the
needs of our customers for orders outside Mainland China.

Despite the decrease in revenue, operating profit from our
manufacturing business increased by 6.5% to HK$175.9 million
(2011:
control measures.

HK$165.1 million) as a result of the management’s cost
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Business Review (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business

This segment includes the businesses of distribution of Diadora
Products through the Winor Group and retailing of multi-brand and
mono-brand products and distribution of sportswear products
through the Win Sports Group.

In 2012, the increasingly intensified competition in retail market
and higher retail discounts, coupled with rising labour costs and
rentals, led to further shrinking profit margin in our retail business.
Revenue of this business segment decreased by 4.1% to
HK$252.8 million (2011: HK$263.6 million), accounting for 8.2% of
the Group’s total revenue (2011: 8.2%). The segmental gross profit
and its margin also decreased to HK$87.6 million (2011: HK$103.9
million) and 34.7% (2011: 39.4%) respectively. Operating loss in
this segment significantly reduced by 69.5% to HK$51.3 million
(2011: HK$168.1 million) as the Group recognised an impairment
loss of HK$112 million on “Diadora” trademark for the year ended
31 December 2011 whereas there was no such impairment
December 2012. Further
discussion of the performance in each stream of this segment is

recognised for the year ended 31

set out below:

Distribution of Diadora Products

The Winor Group owns the trademark of “Diadora” in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau and hence has the respective right
to manufacture, sell and distribute Diadora Products. Under the
competitive retail market in Mainland China, the Winor Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012 was HK$53.1
million (2011: HK$65.7 million). We will focus on streamlining the
sales network and tightly control the inventory level to minimise
the loss.

As at 31 December 2012, the Winor Group had a sales network
comprising approximately 20 Diadora distributors operating
approximately 101 points-of-sales in Mainland China. The Win
Sports Group is also one of the distributors selling Diadora
Products, details of which are presented as below. The Winor
Group also self-managed 24 retail shops in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau.
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Business Review (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)
Retail of Multi-brand Products

The Win Sports Group mainly operates sportswear retail business
selling Umbro and Diadora products in Mainland China and
sportswear products of various brands in Hong Kong.

Revenue and gross profit of the Win Sports Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 were HK$202.7 million (2011: HK$206.3
million) and HK$70.7 million (2011: HK$80.9 million) respectively.

In Mainland China, the sportswear market was still under
adjustment period for the year ended 31 December 2012. Market
players had tried to clear excess inventories through heavy
discounting. As a result, revenue and gross profit from our
sportswear retail business in Mainland China for the year ended
31 December 2012 dropped to HK$65.7 million (2011: HK$ 90.2
million) and HK$21.7 million (2011: HK$34.3 million) respectively.
We had managed to mitigate the negative impact by streamlining
our sales network and closing non-performing shops. The shop
closure plan will be substantially complete by the end of June
2013. We expect the loss will be substantially reduced
accordingly. Besides, Nike Inc. had sold the trademark of “Umbro”
to Iconix Brand Group Inc (“lconix”), a company listed in the
United States of America, in December 2012. We are actively
discussing with Iconix the future development of the brand in the

Mainland China.

On the other hand, revenue and gross profit from our sportswear
retail business in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2012 increased to HK$137.0 million (2011: HK$116.1 million) and
HK$48.9 million (2011: HK$42.1 million) respectively as a result of
overall growth in retail market and vibrant inbound tourism in
Hong Kong. Our sportswear retail business in Hong Kong
recorded an operating profit of HK$0.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: operating loss of HK$1.5 million).
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Business Review (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)
Retail of Multi-brand Products (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Win Sports Group had
approximately 145 mono-brand shops in Mainland China, majority
of which were selling Umbro Products and the remaining were
selling Diadora Products, and 14 self-managed retail shops in
Hong Kong, of which 2 were traded under the name of “Futbol
Trend”, 7 were under the name of “Sports Corner” and 5 mono-
brand shops for several international sports brands made up the
rest.

Discontinued Operations
Distribution of Umbro Products

In 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with UIL for the
early termination of the Umbro Distributor Agreement which
granted T&S Group exclusive distribution rights of the Umbro
branded products in the Greater China from March 2007 to
December 2020. Concurrent with the termination of the Umbro
Distributor Agreement, the Group entered into a transition
services agreement with UIL and its related entities, under which
the T&S Group will provide services to UIL and its related entities
for the period from 2 June 2011 to 30 June 2012 to assist them in
avoiding disruption in the transition and operation of the
distribution business after the termination of distribution rights by
T&S Group. As a result, the Group has recognised a service
income of HK$18.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011: HK$21.6 million).

As a result of the above transactions, the T&S Group has the
rights to distribute Umbro branded products up to 30 June 2012
only. Therefore its results were presented as a discontinued
operation and its assets and liabilities were classified as a
disposal group, as assets/liabilities held for sale. During the
current year, revenue and profit from the discontinued operations
decreased to HK$10.7 million (2011: HK$113.1 million) and HK$8.8
million (2011: HK$161.6 million), respectively. The profit from the
discontinued operations in 2011 included a gain of HK$214.5
million from termination of the Umbro distribution rights whereas
no such gain was recorded in 2012.
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Prospects

Looking into 2013, the worldwide challenging economic situation
will be continued. Under Manufacturing Business, customer orders
in 2013 will be stable but no growth is expected as no major
sports events will be held. However, the 2014 FIFA World Cup
may have positive impact on our customer orders in the last
quarter of 2013 and the first half of 2014. Besides, the Group is
actively looking for new customers with a view to rebuild the
growth opportunity. Under the Distribution and Retail Business in
Mainland China, the environment is still very tough. It may take
one to two years for the market to consume the excess inventory.
Our strategy is to scale down our sales network to minimise the
loss.

Manufacturing Business

It is expected that the labour cost in Mainland China will continue
to rise in the coming years; whereas more and more customers
have been requesting their strategic supply chain partners to
expand its non-China production capacity to diversify the cost
inflation risk. The Group is expanding its production facilities in
Vietnam and Cambodia. Those areas provide relatively stable
labour supply with lower labour costs. We have started trial run in
our new factory in Cambodia in February 2013. We believe our
overseas expansion strategy will offer us a more cost-effective
position so that the Group could sustain a reasonable profit
margin. We have been shifting the Group’s production capacity to
overseas significantly in 2013 and ultimately we expect half of the
Group’s production capacities will be outside Mainland China
earliest by the end of 2014.

In addition, we also continue to explore the opportunities to
diversify our Manufacturing Business to include fashion garment.

Distribution and Retail Business

The sportswear market adjustment in Mainland China is likely to
last for one to two more years. The Group will focus on clearing
inventory, streamlining sales network and improving retail
efficiency.
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Prospects (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)

On the other hand, we expect the demand of high-end fashion in
Mainland China and Hong Kong will continue to grow as a result
of continued increase in disposable income of Mainland China
citizens. According to the statistics released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China in January 2013, the growth rate of
per capita disposable income of urban households was 9.6% in
2012 (2011:
entered into a subscription agreement in August 2011 with the

8.4%). To capture these opportunities, the Group

Shine Gold Limited, the group of which is principally engaged in
retailing of fashion wears and accessories. The Shine Gold Group
has a self-managed retail network for self owned brands
“D-mop”, “Blues Heroes” and “Loveis” etc in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, for brands under exclusive distribution rights,
including “¥-3” in Hong Kong and Mainland China and “moussy”
and “SLY” in Hong Kong and for brands under non-exclusive
distribution rights, including “AZUL by moussy” and “SHEL’ TTER”

in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the Group agreed to
subscribe for convertible bonds of Shine Gold Limited in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$70.0 million which would be
issued in two tranches. The convertible bonds bear interest from
its date of issue at a rate of 5% per annum on the principal
amount of the convertible bonds outstanding on the interest
payment date, and may be converted in full into 60-70% of the
issued share capital of Shine Gold Limited any time over five
years, depending on certain conditions. On 16 August 2011, the
Group acquired the first tranche of convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$31.2 million. On 21 February 2013, the
Group acquired the second tranche convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$38.8 million and now holds convertible
bonds of Shine Gold Limited in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$70.0 million. Together with the existing sportswear retail
network under the Win Sports Group, the Group will run a series
of self owned retail brands including “D-mop”, “Futbol Trend” and
“Sports Corner” and self-owned product brands including
“Diadora”, “Blues Heroes” and “Loveis” in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group will also run retail shops for “Y-3”,
“‘moussy’, “SLY”, ‘AZUL by moussy’, “SHEL’TTER” and some
international sports brands.
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Prospects (Continued)
Discontinued Operations
Distribution of Umbro Products

As mentioned in Business Review section above, the T&S Group
has completed its obligation under the transition services
agreement on 30 June 2012. However, the Group will, according
to the key account agreement (“KAA”), continue to act as a key
account of Umbro by operating a certain number of shops until 30
June 2013. The Group will further receive approximately US$2.5
million (equivalent to HK$19.5 million) from UIL as an incentive
upon reaching certain shop opening targets. Details of which have
been included in the announcement of the Company dated 21
April 2011.

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cashflow and bank facilities. The Group maintained an
outstanding financial position during the year under review. As at
31 December 2012, it had cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months amounting to
HK$976.7 million (31 December 2011: HK$810.6 million). The net
increase of cash balance was mainly attributed by the cash inflow
from operations and inventory clearance offsetting by the cash
outflow to capital expenditures and the payment of dividends.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank borrowings
amounting to HK$12.4 million (31 December 2011: HK$4.7 million).
The Group did not enter into any interest rate swap to hedge
against risks associated with interest rates. As at 31 December
2012, the Group still had unutilised banking facilities amounting to
HK$261.5 million (31 December 2011: HK$226.8 million). The
gearing ratio, being total bank borrowings divided by total equity,
as at 31 December 2012, was 0.6% (31 December 2011: 0.2%).
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Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 14,200
employees (31 December 2011: approximately 16,000 employees).
The Group remunerates employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions. Other
employee benefits include retirement benefits, insurance, medical
coverage and a share option scheme.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2012, bank deposit of HK$1.2 million (31
December 2011: HK$1.8 million) was pledged to secure banking
facilities for the Group.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s sales and purchases were mostly denominated in US
Dollars and RMB. During the year, approximately 78.2%, 15.7%
and 6.1% of sales were denominated in US Dollars, RMB and
Hong Kong Dollars, respectively, whereas approximately 68.6%,
12.2% and 18.9% of purchases were denominated in US Dollars,
RMB and Hong Kong Dollars, respectively. Further, as at 31
December 2012, approximately 47.5%, 46.1% and 6.3% of cash
and cash equivalents and bank deposits with initial terms of over
three months were denominated in US Dollars, RMB and Hong
Kong Dollars, respectively.

The Group considered that the foreign currency exchange
exposure arising from the above transactions and cash balances
was minimal during the year on the ground that Hong Kong
dollars were pegged against US dollars and the recent pressure
from appreciation of RMB was manageable during the year.
Accordingly, the Group considered the use of any derivative
instruments to hedge against foreign currency exposure arising
from the above transactions and cash balances was not critical
and determined during the year under review.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no significant contingent liabilities, litigation or
arbitration of material importance as at 31 December 2012.
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Executive Directors

LI Kwok Tung Roy, aged 62, is our executive Director, our co-
founder and Chairman. He was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2005. Mr. LI is the elder brother of Mr.
LEE Kwok Leung. Mr. LI is responsible for strategic planning
and overall management of our Group. Mr. LI has over 30
years of experience in the apparel industry and handling client
relationship. Mr. LI is a committee member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in He Yuan city,
Guangdong province of Mainland China.

Mr. LI is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also the director of Quinta Asia Limited, which
has an interest in such number of shares of the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures
Ordinance as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company” in this annual report.

LAl Ching Ping, aged 62, is our executive Director, our co-
founder, Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. He was
appointed as an executive Director in December 2005. Mr. LAI
oversees the merchandising functions including production and
purchasing teams within the Manufacturing Business of our
Group and is also responsible for the overall management of
our Group. Mr. LAl has over 30 years of experience in the
apparel industry. Mr. LAl is a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Yun Fu
city, Guangdong province of Mainland China.

Mr. LAl is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also the director of Quinta Asia Limited, which
has an interest in such number of shares of the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures
Ordinance as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company” in this annual report.

CHEUNG Chi, aged 46, is our executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer. He was appointed as an executive Director in
February 2006 and is currently the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. CHEUNG is responsible for
our overall financial management, merger and acquisition and
corporate finance projects. Prior to joining us in 2005, Mr.
CHEUNG had been the executive vice president and chief
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financial officer of Aspire Holdings Ltd. which is a member of
China Mobile Communications Corporation. Mr. CHEUNG had
also been the chief financial officer of eBIS Co., Ltd., and the
financial controller of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a
senior consultant of Arthur Andersen & Co. in which he was
responsible for several initial public offering projects. He has over
20 years of experience in financial management. Mr. CHEUNG
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1992 and 2004 respectively. Mr. CHEUNG is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

LEE Kwok Leung, aged 50, is our executive Director and Chief
Operation Officer. He was appointed as an executive Director
in February 2006 and is currently the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LEE is the younger brother of
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy. Mr. LEE is responsible for the Group’s
supply chain, including product research and development,
product costing, raw material procurement, garment production,
technology
implementation and overseeing the fabric knitting and dyeing
business of our Group. Mr. LEE has been with us for over 20
years after his graduation from the York University in 1987 with
a Bachelor of Arts degree.

quality control, logistic arrangement and

Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHAN Kwong Fai, aged 66, is our independent non-executive
Director. Dr. CHAN joined us in April 2006. Dr. CHAN has
been in the academic field for over 30 years and is currently
an Associate Professor at the Department of Management and
Marketing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. CHAN
is also an author of several publications in the business
management area. Dr. CHAN graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree in Social
Science in 1971 and obtained his Master of Business
Management from the University of Adelaide and Doctor of
Philosophy from the University of South Australia in 1981 and
2004 respectively.
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KWAN Kai Cheong, aged 63, is our independent non-
executive Director. He joined us in April 2006. Mr. KWAN is
currently the president of Morrison & Company Limited, a
business consultancy firm, and an independent non-executive
director of several listed companies in Hong Kong including
Henderson Sunlight Asset Management Limited, Hutchison
Harbour Ring Limited, Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited
and SPG Land (Holdings) Limited. He is also a non-executive
director of China Properties Group Limited, shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He has since October 2010
become an independent non-executive director of Galaxy
Resources Limited, a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange.

Mr. KWAN previously worked for Merrill Lynch & Co. Inc. and was
the president for its Asia Pacific region. He was an independent
non-executive director of Hutchison Telecommunications
International Limited since August 2004 and resigned in May
2010 after its privatisation. He was also previously an independent
non-executive director of Soundwill Holdings Limited until January
2011 and a non-executive director of JF Household Furnishings
Limited until August 2011.

Mr. KWAN completed the Stanford Executive Program in 1992.
He also holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree
from the University of Singapore. He is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

MA Ka Chun, aged 61, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. MA joined us in June 2006. Mr. MA has been in
the apparel industry for over 20 years and is currently a
director of Fashionmark Holdings Limited, principally engaging
in the manufacture of apparels for some international fashion
brands with production bases in Zhuhai and Zhongshan,
Mainland China. Mr. MA holds a Bachelor of Social Science
degree from the University of Hong Kong.

WUN Kwang Vincent, aged 63, is our independent non-
executive Director. Mr. WUN joined us in April 2006. He is
currently the managing director of Pinefield Industries Ltd, a
manufacturer of wooden products. Mr. WUN obtained a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Harvard University
in 1979.



EEREREEAEEE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EREEAER

E® > 615 ' [Diadora |R D HEKNE
EALE NHLBERTELRBRA=TEL
B FR-ZZEE=ZFMALEB LT
[Umbrol R D SHEBNEERE ¥R
—Z2ENERARBFAA[Diadora | # 5 i
ERNEZHLKE  BEEEDiadoraE fm
MAHER RWMBEREEZA  BL4ET
HEFEABEELARBEBNHEERERE
3 K Robinson B & A 7] 1A 7 10 3 /9 7 44
BE - BRER-NEAEEEEBHIUK
ENFE LR NEBELE o

REE 455 SEEENESALE R
MIREEEXEBB_TFLR -R-ZTEN
FtA WMEMAREEASEERNE
BRE UR-_ZE——F=FBARESTAR
B BEEEBETEAMREENZEEK -
RMBEREBE A > R/ EBLafuma HK
Limited A KB AHEFRERLARANE
ERBISRECERKESIMSEREL
EHERBREBRLAGANPHEAZELERLIHM
BEE -RIMNER-NN=FEESHEZH
HEHEAENREMEREHBELE

fiL o

MEE 345 RAME AEFKELT
WEIF ERARMESE MPMERZ-E
ZEFT-AMALKEE TR-ZF-ZF
NEEARDAUE -RMEAKER - M
PMEBRESRKESHASKMREEE
T - MMER-ZBE-FEBEEBEEX
ENTHERZTE N YAFBEHAD
ENEREE -

Senior Management

TAM Keung, aged 61, is the managing director of our
Distribution Business for the brand “Diadora” and has over 30
years of experience in wholesale and retail industry. Mr. TAM
joined us in 2003 as the sales director of our Distribution
Business for the brand “Umbro” and was promoted to be the
managing director of Distribution Business for the brand
“Diadora” in June 2008 responsible for overseeing the
distribution business of Diadora Products. Prior to joining us,
Mr. TAM had been the sales and merchandising manager of
Isetan department store in Hong Kong and the general
merchandising manager of Robinson department store in
Singapore. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Chinese Arts and
Literature from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1976.

CHAN Yuk Lin, aged 45, is the managing director of our Retail
Business and has 20 years of experience in retail industry. Ms.
CHAN joined us in July 2008 as the general manager and was
promoted to be the managing director of our Retail Business in
March 2011 overseeing the retail business in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Prior to joining us, she had been the general
manager of Lafuma HK Limited, the division manager of retail
merchandising and the department manager of sourcing of
Swire Resources Limited, assistant section manager of China
retail operations of Texwood and Apple Limited. She obtained
a Master degree in Clothing (Marketing and Distribution) from
the Manchester Metropolitan University in UK in 1993.

LAM Choi Ha, aged 34, is our company secretary responsible
for handling the company secretarial, compliance and financial
affairs of the Group. Ms. LAM joined us in November 2005
and was promoted to be the company secretary in September
LAM has worked in the
accountancy profession with PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. LAM

2010. Prior to joining us, Ms.

obtained a Bachelor degree in Business Administration from the
Hong Kong Baptist University in 2001. Ms. LAM is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

ZE-CEER AKEEEERERLT
2012 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 21



¥ ERB|E Corporate Governance Report

ESERARHNLEERHAREEER
BEABEERFHEHERR  BURRESE
REFXEERERBERRRER °

REREFER AR -ERH LR A&
TOREEXRERERTR (REERTA )
(BHEZE-ZF=ZRA=+t-B)REBI
EERERTU(BE-—-FOA-HEEXN)
ZRAURFAGXLETERE -

ESETESREINEETA

ARBCHRNBERBEREIFERADES
IHRMTETRANDME A ERBHTA
ESETESRINBEETR(RETRAD
FMBEEHESESREZNTATR - @2
BESFHERNR  REYRIANEFA—E
BIRETAMBNRERER -

—E-—EFR
22 2012 Annual Report

XEREZERERQA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance into the management structure
and the internal control procedures of the Group so as to
ensure that all business activities of the Group and the decision
making process are properly regulated.

During the year under review, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) (effective until
31 March 2012) and the revised CG Code (effective from 1 April
2012) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Having made enquiry to all Directors, they all
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in
the Board.

The Board is responsible for governing the Group and
managing assets entrusted by the Shareholders. Its principal
responsibilities include formulating the Group’s business
strategies and management objectives, monitoring and
overseeing the performance of the Group, setting the Group’s
values and standards and ensuring a prudent and effective
framework of internal control is in place to enable risks to be

assessed and managed.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
Chief Executive Officer and the management of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and
four independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical
details and family relationships among the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 18 to 21.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business operation and development of the
Group.

All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their
duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing to the
successful performance of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly segregated.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and his
principal role is to provide leadership for the Board on corporate
and strategic planning, ensure proper proceedings of the Board
and encourage all Directors to have active contributions to the
Board’s affairs.
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The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. LAl Ching Ping. Supported by
the other executive Directors and the management, his principal
role is to manage and operate the Group’s day-to-day business,
including the implementation of major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

Responsibilities, Accountability and Contribution of the
Board and Management

The management of the Company is led by the executive
Directors of the Board and has delegated powers and authorities
to carry out the day-to-day operations of the Group; formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues; and
exercise power and authority delegated by the Board from time to
time. The management assumes full accountability to the Board
for the operations of the Group.

The Board had given clear directions to the management, while
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the
Board for its approval:

(@) Publication of final and interim results of the Company;

(b) Decisions on whether or not to declare, recommend and pay
dividend;

() Changes to major group structure or Board composition;

(d) Notifiable or connected transactions within the meaning of

Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules; and

(e) Matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which require
approval at a full Board Meeting.

Relationship Between the Board Members

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”, none of the members of the
Board has any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) between each other.
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Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations as a
director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities.

During the year under review, the Company has arranged training
sessions to Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching Ping, Mr.
CHEUNG Chi, Mr. LEE Kwok Leung, Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai, Mr.
KWAN Kai Cheong, Mr. MA Ka Chun and Mr. WUN Kwang
Vincent conducted by external professional bodies to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills through suitable trainings. The
participation in such trainings is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors serve the function of bringing
independent judgment on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All of them have satisfied the independence criteria and the
Company confirmed that it has received an annual confirmation
from each of them pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors consider them to be independent.

—2-—gEH

XEEBEEZEREBRAT
2012 Annual Report 25

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



T¥ERHE Corporate Governance Report

g

EEECRIUBTEE
WEBRITH 8%

CBAEEEARE

FHZzES

ARBRZZENENATNBRLEMZ
B ARGLTRAZATE ZEHBESH
BER-_ZBAF=ZA-TLBR=Z—Z=
FZANBELHBT -FMEZEENETER
EORNESERHER NESNELE
BAENZEFMBRRESE RIBRILE
RMEZHENBEFHTREFMECK - K
DEZEMBREERROES  BEHT
EEReAEBEASREZHFHNDERER
BE-HE BERSHEALNIBEEMEE o
FHAATSBRAQTAZRARRAMD -
TEFHEEURENTEMRAMEE - B
VHHTEZZHFHNERE T EEEESEH
€ WEASBRTSEESFETTME - @5
EEREREEESTESHASEFM
EE-

REEFE FMZSECTALHUTESL
REURBHREERS2HHAS - ES
WeBREREH RASRBBREAL - BE=
E-_F+-A=t-ALFEZESHS
AEERNE OB ERRMEE250)

RIEEHRBIM 8+ R EBASK  BE
“E-CZEF+ZAZT-HLEEE  BHMH
HEHNSZEREEEREZEHMEA Y I
T:

HHEE:

£%1,000,000% T
1,000,001 v £1,500,0007% 7t

—E-—EEH
26 2012 Annual Report

XEREZERERQA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Certain committees have been set up under the Board to
supervise the management and administrative functions of the
Group. They include:

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18
April 2006 with written terms of reference which were revised on
29 March 2009 and 9 March 2012 in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
of all remuneration of the Directors and senior management and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The Company’s
emolument policy is to ensure that the remuneration offered to
employees including executive Directors and senior management
is based on skills, knowledge, responsibilities and involvement in
the Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages are also
determined by reference to the Company’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions. The emolument policy for
independent non-executive Directors, mainly comprising directors’
fees, is subject to an annual assessment with reference to the
market standard. Individual director and senior management would
not be involved in deciding their own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has
assessed performance of the executive Directors and reviewed
and determined their remuneration packages. The remuneration of
Directors comprises basic salary, pensions and discretionary
bonus. Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in Note 25(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to provision B.1.5 of the Appendix 14 of Listing Rules,
the remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

AH
Remuneration band: Number of individuals
—F-=% %%
2012 2011
Nil-HK$1,000,000 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 2 2
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Members of the Remuneration Committee comprise Dr. CHAN
Kwong Fai (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and Mr. KWAN Kai
Cheong, two of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 April
2006 with written terms of reference which were revised on 29
March 2009 and 9 March 2012 in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

(@) To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
directors; and

(e) To review its own performance, constitution and terms of
reference at least once a year to ensure it is operating at
maximum effectiveness and recommend any changes it
considers necessary to the Board for approval.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has
recommended the re-election of retiring directors by rotation to the
Board and approved the appointment of Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai as
a member of the Nomination Committee.

On 9 March 2012, Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai was appointed as a
member of the Nomination Committee.

Members of the Nomination Committee comprise Mr. WUN Kwang
Vincent (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching Ping,
Mr. MA Ka Chun and Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai, three of whom are
independent non-executive Directors.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 April 2006
with written terms of reference which were revised on 29 March
2009 and 9 March 2012 in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To recommend the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor, and to approve their
remuneration and terms of engagement;

(b)  To monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial statements,
annual reports and interim reports;

(c) To review the Group’s financial control, internal control and
risk management system;

(d) To discuss with the management the internal control system
and ensure that the management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system; and

(e) To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

In addition, the Audit Committee has been delegated by the Board
to be responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions that are listed as follows:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to our employees and Directors; and

() To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the revised CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee in 2012:

. review of and recommendation for the Board’s approval of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 and unaudited interim consolidated financial
information for the six months ended 30 June 2012 with a
focus on compliance with accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and other requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

. discussion with the external auditor and the management on
accounting policies and practices;

. review of the external auditor’s significant audit matters;

. review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions;

. consider the adequacy of resources, qualification and
experience of staff of our Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and training programmes and
budget;

. approval of the audit fees and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

. review of independence of the external auditor and
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor; and

. determine the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company and duties delegated by the Board.

Members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. KWAN Kai
Cheong (Chairman), Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent, Dr. CHAN Kwong
Fai and Mr. MA Ka Chun, all being independent non-executive
Directors.
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Attendance of Meetings

The Board holds regular Board meetings, Remuneration
Committee meeting, Nomination Committee meeting and Audit
Committee meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses,
operations, development and conduct. All important issues are
discussed in a timely manner. The attendance record of each
Director at the aforesaid meetings is set out below:

BE-Z-—F+-A=+-HLEEHE AERHEEHERY
Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend
for the year ended 31 December 2012
FMZzEE REZEE BHRZEEE

EsgeE RRAE =f =L =]
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board General Committee Committee Committee
Meeting  Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
4/4 17 17 11 N/A
4/4 17 N/A 17 N/A
4/4 11 N/A N/A N/A
3/4 17 N/A N/A N/A
4/4 17 17 11 2/2
4/4 17 17 N/A 2/2
4/4 17 N/A 17 2/2
3/4 17 N/A 0/1# 12
Notes:
1. Members of Remuneration Committee
2. Chairman of Remuneration Committee
3. Members of Nomination Committee
4. Chairman of Nomination Committee
5. Members of Audit Committee
6. Chairman of Audit Committee
# One attendance was attended by Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent’s alternate

director, Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai, and has not been counted as
attendance by himself.
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Responsibilities in respect of the Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have
been adopted. The principal accounting policies, which have been
consistently applied to all the years, adopted for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group are set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The reporting responsibility of the Company’s external auditor on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 51 to 52 of this annual
report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as

follows:
FTExT
R%EME Nature of services HK$°000
%R Audit services 3,238
FRER (M) Non-audit services (Note) 820
4,058

Ha: RRERBERFEATHMBEN BT
HERF ERAFEZRERVBER
R o

P &P BE 42

ESEREARENARELRRER  LER
AAREABEEHNE(BENE -EE -4
REHNREBRER) WA -

AEEHNRE EEREEAREEBR
HHER FEBNABEZAFERAS
RE BRHREAERRANEL LE
BRAELEFNERBNER UARERX
BEE -

Note: Non-audit services include review of interim financial information,
certain agreed-upon procedures, limited assurance engagement
and taxation related services.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control
procedures and for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system which includes financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The
Group’s internal control is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment
of business objective.
TE-ZEFRH
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During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review
of, and is satisfied with, the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy in March 2012 and shall review it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways:

(@) the holding of annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings, if any which may be convened for specific
purposes, which provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly to the Board;

(b) the publication of announcements, annual reports, interim
reports and circulars on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange;

(c) publication of press releases of the Company providing
updated information of the Group;

(d) the availability of latest information of the Group on our
website;

(e) the holding of investor/analyst briefings and media conference
from time to time; and

(f)  meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (“EGM”)

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition.
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There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the articles of association of
the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcomed to send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary of the
Company through the following channels:

i) by mail to the Company’s head office at 6th Floor, Phase 6,
Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building, 481-483 Castle
Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong;

i) by email at ir@win-hanverky.com.hk; or
iii) by fax at (852) 2745-6166.
Voting by Poll

The articles of association of the Company set out the
procedures, requirements and circumstances where voting by poll
is required. Pursuant to Rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands.

The poll results will be published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange as soon as possible after conclusion of
the general meeting, but in any event not later than the time that
is 30 minutes before the earlier of the commencement of the
morning trading session or any pre-opening session on the
business day following the general meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

December 2012, there was no

significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents, and

During the year ended 31

these documents are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
distribution and retailing of garment products, including
sportswear, golf and high-end fashion apparel and related
accessories. Sales are primarily under an OEM arrangement to
customers in Europe, North America and Asia and distribution

and retail modes in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 55 of
this report.

The Board recommends a payment of final dividend of HK4.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012, subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on Thursday, 30 May 2013, payable to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Wednesday, 5 June 2013. The dividend will be
paid on or about Friday, 14 June 2013.

The Board has also declared an interim dividend of HK3.0 cents
per Share for the six months ended 30 June 2012.
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Closures of Register of Members

For determining the entittement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 30
May 2013, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 28 May 2013 to Thursday, 30 May 2013
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attendance
and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, all transfers of Shares of the Company accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong
Kong share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor
Investor Services Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2013.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed on
Wednesday, 5 June 2013, during which no transfer of Shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfers of Shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for

registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 June 2013.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 57 to 58 of this report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distributions to Shareholders amounted to HK$768.8 million (2011:
HK$779.9 million). Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Donation

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and
other donations totaling HK$615,700.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this
report.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year under review.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy
Mr. LAI Ching Ping
Mr. CHEUNG Chi

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

Mr. MA Ka Chun

Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. LAl Ching Ping, Mr. MA Ka Chun and Mr. WUN
Kwang Vincent shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 21.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to
termination by either party giving not less than six months’
each of the

written notice. Under the service contracts,

executive Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary
management bonus in respect of each complete financial year

of the Group as the Board may approve.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company with a fixed term
of office for three years which is determinable by either party
giving not less than three months’ written notice.
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
information on Directors are as follows:

The service agreements of Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching
Ping, Mr. CHEUNG Chi and Mr. LEE Kwok Leung, the executive
Directors, were renewed for a further term of 3 years commencing
from 29 January 2012. As supplemented by supplemental service
agreements entered on 14 March 2013, all their monthly
remunerations had also been adjusted with retrospective effect
from 1 January 2013 with reference to remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions, whilst other
terms remained unchanged. The monthly remunerations of Mr. LI
Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAI Ching Ping, Mr. CHEUNG Chi and Mr.
LEE Kwok Leung are HK$295,300, HK$249,800, HK$161,300 and
HK$129,800, respectively.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during the
financial year.
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Directors’ Disclosure of Interests

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive(s) of the Company (if any) in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which any such director or chief executive has taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in the Shares of the Company

EEns

Name of Directors

FERLTE
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy

RELEE
Mr. LAl Ching Ping
REXE

Mr. CHEUNG Chi

FERLE
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung

HARAREZEA L
M7 & A Percentage of
g 4% Number of interest in the
Capacity Shares Company*
ZEHEEER 743,769,967 58.64%
Interest in a controlled corporation (BE=E1)
(Note 1)
EREEA 4,186,000 0.33%
Beneficial owner
ERERA 10,650,000 0.84%
Beneficial owner (M &E2)
(Note 2)
EREBA 2,000,000 0.16%
Beneficial owner (Bt 5E3)
(Note 3)

* BALDRBR=-Z-=Zf+=-B=+
— B B % 171,268,400,0008 & % &

go
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* The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares
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B E
EEHE Associated
Name of Directors corporation
TEREE Quinta
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy
REFLEE Quinta

Mr. LAI Ching Ping

REXFIREEN R-ZT-—ZF+
ZR=t-R EE THERARE
BEENBMEATEESIFESZHER
AREREHABREZE(ERRESRY
ERAEXVER) 2R - HEROK
BHRZEMEZILR -

TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT

Directors’ Disclosure of Interests (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

1. Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy holds 70% of the issued share capital
of Quinta Asia Limited (“Quinta”). Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy has
a controlling interest in Quinta and is therefore deemed to be
interested in Quinta’s interest in the Company for the
purposes of the SFO.

2. Mr. CHEUNG Chi is interested in 650,000 Shares held and is
also interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
10,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

3. Mr. LEE Kwok Leung is interested as a grantee of options to
subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Long positions in the shares of the Associated
Corporation of the Company (as defined in the
SFO)

LS

EHEEIL

Percentage of

BRHEE interest in

g4 Number of associated

Capacity shares corporation

ERERA 7 70%
Beneficial owner

BEREBA 3 30%

Beneficial owner

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of
the Directors, chief executive(s) or any of their respective
associates had any interest or short position, whether
beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares, the underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2012, as far as the Directors were aware,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive(s) of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

RHEFE Long positions in the Shares
R A7 &
BMABD >
Approximate
KR#GEE  percentage of
&% 514 Number of interest in the
Name Capacity Shares Company*
Quinta BERERA 743,769,967 58.64%

Beneficial owner

Templeton Asset Management REKE 175,488,732 13.84%

Limited

* HALWDBREWR=ZE-—F+=-H=+-HE
171,268,400,000% f& 3 51 & o

REXREEN R-FBE--FF+ZA=1
—B ARBABEREAAL(RRTES
FITHABRNBA - RRNRADTRDK
HMERDTFEERBEESRAEHRMNEXV
WE2RIDWBREABA AR ERREF
ERHERPIEIBRELTRARAFEN
BREMNERRKE -

EERBFRB2RR
BRAEEEBSN EFUBERFEMER

EESBRFERFRIRFERTEZAEM
XBHEAES -

Investment manager

* The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the
Company had not been notified by any person (other than the
Directors or chief executive(s) of the Company) who had
interests or short position in the Shares and underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Pre-IPO Share Options

In recognition of the contributions made by employees and a
consultant of the Group towards its growth and success, on 10
May 2006, Pre-IPO Share Options (the exercise of which
would entitle these grantees to an aggregate of 44,400,000
Shares) have been granted by the Company to, and accepted
by, among others, certain employees.

Movements of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended
31 December 2012 are as follows:

R ERAMERNERERE
o N = Number of Pre-IPO Share Options
Exercise
price R=-B-=F§ RERTHE RERXRK R=ZZ—-=f%
per Share THEHSME —A—A8 Exercised Lapsed +=-HA=+—AH
AEEA BT BEAH Exercise As at during during As at
Grantee HK$ Vesting date period 01/01/2012 the year the year 31/12/2012
REXE 1.596 06/09/2006 06/09/2006— 1,960,000 — — 1,960,000
HITEE 09/05/2016
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 30/06/2007 30/06/2007— 3,960,000 — — 3,960,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008— 4,080,000 — — 4,080,000
09/05/2016
10,000,000 — — 10,000,000
TEREE 2.28 06/09/2006 06/09/2006— 404,000 — — 404,000
HITEE 09/05/2016
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 30/06/2007 30/06/2007— 804,000 — — 804,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008—- 792,000 — — 792,000
09/05/2016
2,000,000 2,000,000
ATE K EWD 1.14 30/06/2008 30/06/2008— 9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
Mr. CHOW Chi WaiNete) 09/05/2016
9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
@5t 21,000,000 — — 21,000,000
Total

Bt RBEEEEB-ZEAF-A-thAR
REHTES -

“F-—5EH  ABEEERARAT
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Note: Mr. CHOW Chi Wai resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 29 January 20009.
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EE2H{4E Report of the Directors

Pre-IPO Share Options (continued)

A summary of the principal conditions attached to the Pre-IPO
Share Options is set out below:

1. Consideration

A cash consideration of HK$1.00 has been paid by each
grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Options.

2. Option Period

Subject to other conditions as set out below, 10 years
from the date of the offer of the respective Pre-IPO
Share Options unless extended in writing by the Board
(and approved by the Independent Non-Executive
Directors) in its absolute discretion. Each of the Pre-IPO
Share Options (to the extent not already exercised) shall
lapse automatically at the end of such option period.

3. Exercised Periods and Exercise Price

As set out on page 42.

4. Other Conditions

The grant and/or exercise of each of the Pre-IPO Share
Options is subject to the following additional conditions:

(@) the Pre-IPO Share Option cannot be exercised within
the first six months after the commencement of
dealings in the Shares;

(b) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option may be
made in part or in full subject to any further
restrictions imposed by the Company, the Stock
Exchange and/or the sponsor to the Company’s
listing as any of them see fit for the purposes of
obtaining the Stock Exchange approval to the listing
of and permission to deal in the Shares;

() any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall be
further subject to any guidelines issued by the
Company from time to time in order to ensure full
compliance with the Listing Rules;

ZE-CEER AEEEERERLT
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Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

4.

Other Conditions (Continued)

(d) the Pre-IPO Share Option is personal to the relevant
grantee and may not be transferred or assigned;

() the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not already
exercised) shall lapse at the expiry of the option
period as described in paragraph 2 above or
otherwise in the following manner:

(i) the grantee’s personal representatives (if any)
may exercise the Pre-IPO Share Option within
12 months from his death, upon the expiry of
which the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent
not already exercised) shall lapse automatically
unless extended by the Board in its absolute
discretion;

(i) the grantee’s right to exercise the Pre-IPO
Share Option shall not be affected by hisl/its
cessation of employment, unless such
cessation of employment arises from any
serious misconduct, bankruptcy or conviction of
any criminal offence involving integrity or
honesty, in which case the Pre-IPO Share
Option (to the extent not already exercised)
shall lapse automatically on the his/its last date
of employment with the Group;

(iii) if the grantee breaches any term or condition
of the Pre-IPO Share Option as described
herein, the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the
extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically (unless otherwise directed by the
Board in writing in its absolute discretion); and

(f)  the grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall adhere
to any undertakings or restrictions that may be
further imposed on them by the Stock Exchange or
the sponsor to the Company’s listing.
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EE2HE Report of the Directors

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on
8 August 2006, the Company has established a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) whereby the Board may, at their discretion, invite any
Directors, employees, consultants, professionals, customers, suppliers,
agents, partners or advisers of or contractors to the Group (subject to
the eligibility requirements as set out therein) to take up options which
entitle them to subscribe for Shares representing up to a maximum in
nominal value of 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date unless further Shareholders’ approval has been obtained.
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of the options granted and to be granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12 months’ period up to the
date of grant to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or their associates would not exceed 0.1% of the
shares in issue or an aggregate value of HK$5,000,000 unless
further Shareholders’ approval has been obtained; and to each
other eligible person would not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions that eligible participants have made or may
make to the Group. It also provides the eligible participants with
an opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
with a view to (a) motivate the eligible participants to optimise
the performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and
(b) attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose contributions
are, will or expected to be beneficial to the Group.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years ending on 7 August 2016. The exercise price of options
shall be determined by the Board and shall not be less than
the highest of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the options and the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of offer and
the nominal value of a Share. An option may be exercised at
any time during a period as the Board may determine which
shall not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The accounting policy adopted for the share options is described
in Note 2.22(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2012, no share options had been granted
or were outstanding under this scheme.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in
Mainland China and Vietnam, and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of these
retirement plans are set out in Note 25(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales and purchases from the continuing operations and
discontinued operations of the Group attributable to its major
customers and suppliers respectively for the year ended 31
December 2012 were as follows:

EHRBEA L

HHEER % of

% of Sales Purchases

The largest customer/supplier 78.3% 13.4%
Five largest customers/suppliers 85.8% 31.5%
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EE2H{4E Report of the Directors

Major Customers and Suppliers (Continued)

To the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholder owning more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or

suppliers as disclosed above.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions, disclosed in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirement as
applicable to the following continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected parties
(as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been
entered into and/or ongoing for which relevant announcements,
if necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

(A) Sales to Amerseas Enterprises Limited
(“Amerseas”)

Each of Bowker Garment Accessories Company Limited
(“Bowker Accessories”) and Win Hanverky Textile Limited
(“Win Textile”), the subsidiaries of our Company, has
entered into a master agreement with Amerseas on 16
November 2011 for a term of three years ending 31
December 2014, pursuant to which (i) Bowker Accessories
and its subsidiaries agreed to supply garment accessories to
Amerseas and its subsidiaries; and (ii) Win Textile agreed to
supply fabrics to Amerseas.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(A) Sales to Amerseas Enterprises Limited

(“Amerseas”) (Continued)

TSG BVI is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of our
Company, hence it is a Connected Person. Amerseas is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TSG BVI, therefore it is an
associate of TSG BVI, hence it is also a Connected Person
of our Company.

Our sales by Bowker Accessories Group and Win Hanverky
Textile Limited to the Amerseas Group amounted to
approximately HK$4,272,000 and HK$18,946,000
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2012, which
did not exceed the relevant annual caps disclosed in the
announcement dated 16 November 2011.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,

have reviewed the continuing connected transactions made during

the year ended 31 December 2012 and confirmed that these

transactions were entered into:

(1

(2)

3)

(4)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

in accordance with each of the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and

have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in
previous announcements.
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EE2H{4E Report of the Directors

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 47 to 48 of this annual report in accordance with
paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s

letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this
annual report. Principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 22 to 33 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
report.
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Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2013.

By order of the Board

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
LI Kwok Tung Roy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WIN HANVERKY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Win
Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 193, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated

Ordinance, and for such internal control
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 March 2013
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=X KT

Consolidated Company
RZZ2-Z§% RZEZ--% RIB-ZF RNIE--F
+=A=+-H +t=A=t+-B +=H=+-H t+=A=+-H

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
i &E THEx TET T#x Tz
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
T35 A Land use rights 6 19,226 19,733 - —
¥ BERRE Property, plant and equipment 7 628,914 580,337 - =
BYEE Intangible assets 8 60,538 61,946 - —
RHBLAZRE Investments in subsidiaries 9 = = 1,433,093 1,505,357
REENTzER Interests in associates 10 38,032 33,010 - —
EEFMEHEE Deferred income tax assets 19 10,827 12,194 = =
BAFEGARFHE B2 Financial assets at fair value through profit
SREE or loss 1 33,354 31,790 - —
ERF-HEELNR Loans to an associate 14 173,493 107,245 - —
ey HEA Non-current deposits 14 24,703 = = =
w08 846255 1433008 1505367
REBEE Current assets
RE Inventories 12 450,999 638,677 - —
EKESERKREE Trade and bills receivable 13 325,697 436,552 - —
] U B B E A5 Current income tax recoverables 827 2,560 - —
B¢ FANHEREMEY Deposits, prepayments and other
1R = receivables 14 65,580 86,829 31,030 527
BEARTER Pledged bank deposits 15 1,244 1,839 — =
BREHRBB=MMA BT Bank deposits with initial terms of over
B three months 15 30,100 10,016 — =
RERBEEEN Cash and cash equivalents 15 946,565 790,975 378,016 88,083
1,821,012 1,967,448 409,046 88,610
FINGHELEBEMHE  Assets of disposal group and other
HAREEREMER non-current asset classified as held
BE for sale 32 25,447 73,723 - —
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,846,450 2,041,171 409,046 88,610
RBAE Current liabilities
ENEZRRRE Trade and bills payable 16 271,836 353,232 - =
Btk Z R Et IR Accruals and other payables 17 281,250 262,818 7,461 14,473
NEMEHEE Current income tax liabilities 45,961 65,425 6,136 382
BE Borrowings 18 12,396 4,659 - =
WBAREERKR2ER Loan from non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary 36 7,500 7,500 - —
BB AR I Amounts due to subsidiaries 36 - — 395,224 134,748
618,943 693,634 408,821 149,603
FIABEEHEBEMNHES Liabilities of disposal group classified as
FaE held for sale 32 6,070 26,834 - =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 65013 720468 408821 149603
RBEE/(AE)FH  Net current assets/(liabilities) 1221446 1320703 225 (60,993)
HEERRDERE Total assets less current liabilities 2,210,533 2,166,958 1,433,318 1,444,364

F61EZ193E WM B A o ®mKR — =B The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 193 are an integral part
7 e of these consolidated financial statements.
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EEEBEXR Balance Sheets

RZE—Z-F+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2012

i AQH
Consolidated Company
R=2-Z% RZZ--F R=2-ZF HRZZ--F
i Sl - A=1+-F EEEHESEE +=A=1-H

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
i1 TER TER TER TEx
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
EEFEHER Deferred income tax liabilities 19 10,939 15,870 - -
BEE Net assets 2,199,594 2,151,088 1,433,318 1,444,364
B Equity
AAARELEEAEEELRR Capital and reserves attributable to equity
e holders of the Company
RA Share capital 20 126,840 126,840 126,840 126,840
e Reserves 21 987,352 981,676 1,204,552 1,204,552
RERR Retained earnings 21
— BRRERE — Proposed final dividends 50,736 38,052 50,736 38,052
— Eff — Others 991,473 930,360 51,190 74,920
2,156,401 2,076,928 1,433,318 1,444,364
FERER Non-controlling interests 43,193 74,160 - —
BREE Total equity 2,199,594 2,151,088 1,433,318 1,444,364

FOIEE1QBENMEBAH U B RER -
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The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 193 are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
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4 0tFH% Consolidated Income Statement
HEZZ-—-E+=-HB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

it 5 —B-CF —E-—F
Note 2012 2011
TERT THER
HK$’000 HK$°000
BFEREXK Continuing operations
W &= Revenue 5 3,077,258 3,199,934
SHE M A Cost of sales 24 (2,397,033) (2,504,545)
EA Gross profit 680,225 695,389
$HER 2D A Selling and distribution costs 24 (166,934) (180,527)
—RRTEEX General and administrative expenses 24 (416,264) (529,919)
H g A Other income 22 28,821 2,226
Hi(&18) Wiz — F5 Other (losses)/gains — net 23 (1,292) 9,879
eEEN(BR) Operating profit/floss) ... fEmen, (2952)
A& WA Finance income 26 27,144 13,409
il & B A Finance costs 26 (2,330) (1,523)
R oEE AEWES MBI 2 el e SLECN B
BisHELREN ((BR) Share of profitsi(losses) of associates 0. )
BR Fit 18 Bt A A Profit before income tax 153,619 8,585
FEHEx Income tax expense 27 (42,353) (29,529)
RESEEKEFN (FB) Profit/(loss) from continuing
operations 111,266 (20,944)
BRIEREEE Discontinued operations
BRIELEEKRR Profit from discontinued operations 32 8,761 161,627
FRRF Profit for the year 120,027 140,683
BURA T AL Attributable to:
RATREFEA Equity holders of the Company 150,185 230,196
FERER Non-controlling interests (30,158) (89,513)
120,027 140,683
AAEKREZBEAELEEE Earnings per share from continuing
EESEERROKRILL  operations and discontinued
EERCEBRER operations attributable to the equity
(BB B ALE) holders of the Company during the
year (expressed in HK cents per share)
— HXK — basic 29 11.8 18.1
— #F — diluted 29 11.8 18.1
K E Dividends 30 88,788 101,472

61E E193H MY & B & Hf B 3 ;& —

o

&

The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 193 are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
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A6t2EWE X Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BZ-Z-——-H+=-A=+—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

it 5 —E-C-fF —E2——F
Note 2012 2011
TERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$°000

FEEF Profit for the year 120,027 140,683
Hith 2 mE k&= Other comprehensive income
BEKE AT HEMm2EWE Share of other comprehensive income

of associates 21 773 1,252
EMBEERH Currency translation differences 4,948 22,657
FEXEKREEE Total comprehensive income

for the year 125,748 164,592
UTATEAEZ2EWZEE . Total comprehensive income

attributable to:
RARRERE A Equity holders of the Company 155,577 251,590
FERE R Non-controlling interests (29,829) (86,998)

125,748 164,592
KAFREZEEAELEE Total comprehensive income
KWEBEEESR: attributable to equity holders

of the Company from:
BFEREER Continuing operations 146,816 65,120
ERIEREER Discontinued operations 8,761 186,470

155,577 251,590

FOIEZ1QENMWTBE M BERKR—F  The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 193 are an integral part

2 o

) of these consolidated financial statements.
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EHEREEHR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZ-—-E+=-HB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

KPR REREAENL
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

FERELR
L& Non- “BER
Share & #3 controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
(MfzE20)  (BF&E21)
(Note 20)  (Note 21)
TERT TERT TAR TERT TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE——F-F—-ANEH Balance at 1 January 2011 126,840 1,815,584 1,942,424 185,144 2,127,568
ZEKE Comprehensive income
FERR/ (F8) Profit/(loss) for the year — 230196 230496  (89,513) 140,683
Hith 2 H K& Other comprehensive income
EMBREER Currency translation differences — 20,142 20,142 2,515 22,657
i3 N Share of other comprehensive
Hitt2mEk & income of associates — 1,252 1,252 — 1,252
Htt2ERELE Total other comprehensive
income — 21,394 21,394 2,515 23,909
2HBEAE Total comprehensive income — 251,590 251,590 (86,998) 164,592
BEBARS Transactions with owners
EEHERLBHERTHELT  Changes in ownership interests in
REERERNEZE subsidiaries without change of
(Hf3£35) control (Note 35) — (15614  (15614)  (15586)  (31,200)
1a1 fff /8 2 =) Dividends paid to non-controlling
FERBERLARE interests of subsidiaries — — — (8,400) (8,400)
ERRE Dividends paid
— ZEB-SERHRHES — 2010 final and special — (38052  (38,052) —  (38052)
— B ——fFhHf — 2011 interim — (63,420)  (63,420) — (63,420)
BEBARZAH Total transactions with owners —  (117,086)  (117,086) (23,986)  (141,072)
W=%--#£+-A=+-BW&# Balance at 31 December 2011 126840 1950,088 2076928 74,160 2,151,088

FOIEE193EMMERES M B IHK -8
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of these consolidated financial statements.
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EHEZEHE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BZ-Z-——-H+=-A=+—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

APERERBAENL
Attributable to equity holders of
the Company

FERER
[ Non- BRES
Share i #3  controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
(ME20)  (BFaE21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R-Z-—5-F-HHN&EH Balance at 1 January 2012 126,840 1,950,088 2,076,928 74,160 2,151,088
ZEKE Comprehensive income
EERFH/(E8) Profit/(loss) for the year — 1504185 150,185  (30,158) 120,027
Hir2mE K Other comprehensive income
ERBEER Currency translation differences = 4,619 4,619 329 4,948
BEEE AT Share of other comprehensive
Hir2E W& income of associates - 773 773 - 773
HthZ2EK =4 Total other comprehensive
income - 5,392 5,392 329 5,721
ZHNBEE Total comprehensive income - 155,577 155,577 (29,829) 125,748
HBEBARS Transactions with owners
EHEARFERES Dividends paid to non-controlling
THRHEE interests of subsidiaries - - - (1,138) (1,138)
ERRE Dividend paid
— ZB——FkH — 2011 final - (38,052  (38,052) - (38,052
— ZB-—Eh — 2012 interim - (38,052  (38,052) - (38,052
HBEEARZEE Total transactions with owners - (76,104) (76,104) (1,138) (77,242)

R-ZE-—£+-A=+—-HWE# Balance at 31 December 2012

126,840 2,029,561 2,156,401

43,193 2,199,594

FOIEZ1ENMEBSHHBHRR -
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4t &R EFX Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-Z—-_%+ZB=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-_—F —E——fF

2012 2011
it 3E TERT TET
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
REXBHEESRE Cash flows from operating activities
REmERE Cash generated from operations 31(a) 491,738 205,844
ENFE Interest paid (2,330) (2,411)
ENEBANESR Hong Kong profits tax paid (59,554) (12,751)
ENPEAESCEMREHR  Mainland China enterprise income
tax paid (3,930) (5,222)
BE/(EH)EHFEHR  Overseas income tax refunded/(paid) 24 (671)
REXEBHESRETHE Net cash generated from operating
activities 425,948 184,789
RETHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
s 5% Bt B A R BB A Settlement of consideration payable for
REEM acquisition of subsidiaries (30,359) —
RETRRES Subscription of convertible bonds 1 - (31,200)
EXRTHELT Loans to an associate (53,824) (105,060)
2 WFH E Interest received 13,223 10,885
BEWE KERZHE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (123,700) (78,759)
HEWE HBERZE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
88 and equipment 31(b) 1,217 290
HEDHE Proceeds from disposal of distribution
FBRIEFE right, net 31(c) — 183,300
BEARTERRD/ Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank
(4 n) deposits 15 587 (605)
REHRBB=MEA2MRT (Increase)/decrease in bank deposits with
FROEEM), WD initial terms of over three months (20,149) 9,150
REZBMERSFHE Net cash used in investing activities (213,005) (11,999)
BOIEE13ENHEIBA MM B HRE — I The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 193 are an integral part

) of these consolidated financial statements.
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EHEE€ARER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEZZ--—H+ZA=1+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-—F —E2——F
2012 2011
i TERT TET
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
METHRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BEMEBRE Proceeds from borrowings 31,020 31,647
BEREE Repayments of borrowings (23,283) (72,911)
ENAQATREIZEARE Dividends paid to the Company’s equity
holders (76,104) (101,472)
EfLEEERE Dividends paid to minority interests (1,138) (8,900)
METHARRASFE Net cash used in financing activities (69,505) (151,636)
ReRBEEZEY Net increase in cash and cash
18 8 equivalents 143,438 21,154
FYNRERFELZEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 800,552 763,974
ReRBASEEY Exchange gains on cash and cash
g equivalents 2,575 15,424
946,565 800,552
AL EHEEB KN EE Cash and cash equivalents of disposal
HEIMRERRELEEY  group classified as held for sale 32(b) - (9,577)
FRESR Cash and cash equivalents at end of
RESEY year 15 946,565 790,975

FO1EE193H MM & B S 0f Bf 35 ik — 6
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SHEEMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in the
manufacturing and selling of garment products, including
sportswear, golf and high-end fashion apparel, active and
outer wear, and related accessories. Sales are primarily
under Original Equipment Manufacturing (“OEM”)
arrangements to customers in Europe, North America and
Mainland China, and under distribution and retail modes
in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Its production bases
are primarily located in Mainland China. Details of the
principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note 9
to these consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap.22, (Law 3 of
1961, as combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the Company’s board of
directors on 14 March 2013.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The Principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

ZE-ZEER AREEERBERAF
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012.

. Amendment to HKFRS 7,
Instruments:

‘Financial
Disclosures’ on transfer of
is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
This
Group, as it has no transfer of financial

financial assets
is not currently applicable to the

assets.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

241

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012. (Continued)

. Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First Time
Adoption’, on hyperinflation and fixed dates
is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2011. This is not relevant to
the Group as the Group is not first-time
adopter of financial statements.

. Amendment to HKAS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, on
deferred tax is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012. This
is not currently applicable to the Group, as
it has no investment properties.

(b) The following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and
have not been early adopted:

. HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income’
(effective for periods beginning on or after
1 July 2012)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and
have not been early adopted: (Continued)

. HKAS 19 (Revised 2011), ‘Employee
Benefits’ (effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013)

. HKAS 27 (Revised 2011), ‘Separate
Financial Statements’ (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

. HKAS 28 (Revised 2011), ‘Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures’ (effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013)

. HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘Government Loans’
(effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014)
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and
have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities’ (effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015)

HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements (effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013)

HKFRS 11, ‘Joint Arrangements (effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013)

HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of Interests in
Other Entities (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new or revised standards,

amendments and interpretations to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and

have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 13,
(effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013)

‘Fair Value Measurement’

HK (IFRIC) — Int 20, ‘Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine’
(effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013)

Amendment to HKFRS 1,
Adoption’ on government loans (effective for

‘First Time

period for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9,
‘Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures’ (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015)
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

241

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and
have not been early adopted: (Continued)

. Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12, ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

. Amendment to HKAS 32, ‘Financial
Instruments: Presentation’ on Asset and
liability offsetting (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

. Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011), ‘Investment Entities’
(effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014)

. HKFRSs (Amendment), Annual
improvements 2009-2011 Cycle (effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013)
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The following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and
have not been early adopted: (Continued)

The Group will adopt the above new or revised
standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards as and when they become
effective. The Group has already commenced the
assessment of the impact to the Group and is
not yet in a position to state whether these
would have a significant impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.21 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by
virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may
arise from circumstances such as enhanced
minority rights or contractual terms between
shareholders, etc.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.21
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Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that are
recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.21 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or

loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to
be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
to other

loss or as a change

comprehensive income. Contingent

consideration that is classified as equity is
not and

remeasured, its subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

(b)

2012 Annual Report

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in

subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

©

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at

cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct

attributable costs of investment. The results of

subsidiaries are accounted for by the company

on the basis of dividend and receivable.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
in the

carrying amount of the investment

separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has

significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates

includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an
associate’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.4

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
identified as the executive

segments, has been

directors who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
(the
The consolidated financial

which the entity operates “functional
currency”).
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

©

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains
income

and losses are presented in the

statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

(iiiy all
recognised in other comprehensive income.

resulting exchange differences are
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

() Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
rate.

translated at the closing Exchange

differences arising are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly manufacturing
factories and offices. Leasehold land classified as
finance leases and all other property,
equipment other than construction in progress are

plant and

stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress represents buildings and
leasehold improvements in which construction work has
not been completed and plant, machinery and
equipment pending for installation. It is carried at cost
which includes construction expenditures and other
direct costs
completion, construction in progress is transferred to

less any impairment losses. On

the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until it is completed and available for use.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not
depreciated. Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the land
interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

— Leasehold land classified Over the lease

as finance lease terms
— Buildings 10 to 50 years
— Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years
or over

the lease terms,
whichever

is shorter

— Plant and machinery 4 to 10 years
— Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

— Motor vehicles and yacht 5 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
its estimated

carrying amount is greater than

recoverable (Note 2.9) amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘other gains — net’ in the income
statement.

Land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for land use rights are
accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the periods of the lease, or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the income statement.

Intangible assets
(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group’s
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.
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Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Trademarks have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of trademarks and licences over
their estimated useful lives of 25 years.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

() Customer relationships

Customer relationships represent the fair value
attributable to the customer base or existing
contractual bids with customers taken over as a
result of business combination, and are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The contractual customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected

life of the customer relationship.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
associates and other non-financial assets
life are not

Assets that have an indefinite useful

subject to amortisation, and are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
An

impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which

carrying amount may not be recoverable.
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs).
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

Non-

impairment at each reporting date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and

receivables and financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss. The classification depends on the

purposes for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

(@)

(b)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprised loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of
and cash and cash

over three months,

equivalents in the balance sheet.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.
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S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in
Dividend
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised

which they arise. income from financial
in the income statement as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.12

2.13

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

When securities classified as available for sale are

sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
income statement as gains and losses from investment

securities.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the income statement as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-
for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a
sale is considered highly probable. The non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
(or disposal groups), are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates) and investment
properties, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 2.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographic area of operations, or is part of
a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with

area of

a view to resale.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

213

2.14

2.15

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-
for-sale (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented in the income statement,
which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting
operation.

the discontinued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or

less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as

non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

ZE-ZEER  AREEERBERAF
2012 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

89



SHEBMEN T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

90

—E-—FER
2012 Annual Report

EESTHEREw@m

219 R & (#)

REVEREERANNER
EMIIANEERTEMEMA
HEIBERNRIRA - MZ
ERHERERERBEENS
FRELEXH - MRREBEEME
BRABIAFTANBESRE
R ZBRRERRDMERE
WRNFRBANER  TEEEMR
BHRAEE -

REAEBAEEERESER
REHREREAERARRD T
—ER BRENRIEARDE
f& e

fEERA

EERBRUE EZILEE
REREE(BLAR-BRE
BRENMEEREARREEZ
BE)Z-BREBEERAAE
UMARZEEEZRARN B
FEEARBLBEHERER
BHREERL -

RREEEMS BATHERS
ERBEEZXHMERERE
R ZRERAEESERE
Aoz BERARHE

FEREMEERAEEEHRZ
BEP®ER -

XEEEERERAT
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.19 Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, and the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense comprises current and deferred
income tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for any deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations

Group companies operate several defined
contribution retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)

(b)

2012 Annual Report

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once
The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit

the contributions have been paid.

expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the

future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the

options granted:

. including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

. excluding the impact of any service and

non-market performance vesting conditions
profitability,
targets and remaining an employee of the

(for example, sales growth

entity over a specified time period); and

. excluding the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

©

Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
The
recognised over the vesting period, which is the

expected to vest. total expense is
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
income statement,

adjustment to equity.

with a corresponding

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive

obligation.
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S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.23 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable
until all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(@) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b) Subcontracting income

Subcontracting income is recognised when
subcontracting services are provided.

(c) Concessionaire sales service income

Concessionaire sales service income is
recognised when the sales services are
provided.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

() Rental income

Rental income is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

2.25 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

2.27 Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s equity holders
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors where appropriate.
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Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of

financial risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk.

The Group’s risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and, where
considered necessary, seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group has not used derivative financial
instruments to hedge its risk exposures to changes in

foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Chinese Renminbi
and United States Dollars. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,

recognised assets and liabilities, and net

investments in foreign operations.

As at 31 December 2012, if Chinese Renminbi
had strengthened by 5% (2011: 5%) against the
Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year and equity holders’
equity would have been approximately
HK$16,984,000 (2011: HK$12,638,000) higher
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains on
translation of Chinese Renminbi denominated
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other

receivables, and trade and other payables.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The foreign currency exchange exposure on
in  United
States Dollars is considered to be minimal as

assets and liabilities denominated

Hong Kong Dollars is currently pegged to United
States Dollars.

Credit risk

Credit
equivalents, deposits with banks, as well as

risk arises from cash and cash
credit exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed

transactions.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the
unfavourable economic conditions and the lower
liquidity situation which could in turn impact their
ability to repay the amounts owed to the Group.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors
may also have an impact on management’s cash
flow forecasts and assessment of the impairment
of receivables. To the extent that information is
available, management has properly reflected
updated estimates of expected future cash flows
in their impairment assessments.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. It performs periodic credit

evaluations/reviews of its customers.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(©)

2012 Annual Report

Credit risk (Continued)

Majority of trade receivables are with customers
having an appropriate credit history. The Group
grants its customers credit terms ranging from 30
to 90 days. Most of the Group’s sales are on
open account, while sales made to a small
number of customers are covered by letters of
credit issued by banks or settled by documents

against payment issued by banks.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s trade
receivables due from one group of customers
(2011: one group of customers) represent
approximately 74% (2011: 68%) of its total trade
receivables from third parties (Note 13). The
Group has no other significant concentrations of
credit risk.

The Group has policies to place deposits and
cash and cash equivalents only with major
financial institutions. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions as they have no

default history in the past.

Liquidity risk

Prudent
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of

liquidity risk management includes
funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve comprising undrawn
borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. Surplus
cash held by Group entities over and above
balances required for working capital
management is invested in interest-bearing bank
accounts and term deposits with appropriate
liquidity to provide

sufficient head-room as determined by the

maturities or sufficient

above-mentioned forecasts.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
the

contractual undiscounted cash flows. As at 31

amounts disclosed in the table are
December 2012 and 2011, all financial liabilities
of the Company are due within one year.
Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is

not significant.
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3 cREREE@ 3 Financial risk management (Continued)
31 2EREREZE@ 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) REBEZLREMRE (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
SR-F -ZWE ZERE CH
Less than Between 1  Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
T THER TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=X Consolidated
RZB-ZF+=f=+-8 At 31 December 2012
EERMEFE Borrowings and interest payment 12,655 - - 12,655
REMBAREERERNES  Loan from non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary 7,500 - - 7,500
EFEZRRREL Trade and bills payable 271,836 - - 271,836
JE 5t iR 30 ELth P 0 5K Accruals and other payables 281,250 - - 281,250
573,241 - - 573,241

R-B--%£+-A=t-H At 31 December 2011

EERFEHE Borrowings and interest payment 4,772 — = 4772
REMBEADFERRRMER  Loan from non-controlling shareholder

of a subsidiary 7,500 — — 7,500

ENHESRAREE Trade and bills payable 353,232 — — 353232

JE 5t IR 3R R HLth e IR 5 Accruals and other payables 262,818 — — 262818

628,322 - — 628322
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3 cREREE®@ 3 Financial risk management (Continued)
31 cRREREZE@E 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) RBEZLRMRE (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
PR—F
Less than
1 year
THER
HK$’000
PN Company
R-B--%+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2012
FE 51 0R 7R I H h FE 13 1R X Accruals and other payables 7,461
ERKBARRE Amount due to subsidiaries 395,224
402,685
R-EB-——-%+=ZA=+t-H At 31 December 2011
FE 5t R X % H fth FE 1 1R X Accruals and other payables 14,473
M B AR RE Amount due to subsidiaries 134,748
149,221
(d HERERAFEMER (d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
R-ZB-—-—F+=-H=+ As at 31 December 2012, the Group holds
—B AEEEEGFEE interest bearing asset including the pledged bank
EBESE 25 #%3.3% deposits of HK$1,244,000 (2011: HK$1,839,000),
z—E — —F:. 8 5 bank deposits with initial terms of over three
2.4%) 3.2% (=& — — months of HK$30,100,000 (2011: HK$10,016,000)
FHE31%) R1.4% (= and short-term bank deposits of HK$873,744,000
E——F . FF17% K (2011: HK$766,537,000) which carried weighted
MEEHFZEGFTENDIE average interest rates of 3.3% per annum (2011:
# 4R 17 13 31,244,00078 2.4% per annum), 3.2% per annum (2011: 3.1%
T(=Z= BB — — £: per annum) and 1.4% per annum (2011: 1.7% per
1,839,000 1t) » R B H annum), respectively. Majority of these balances
BREB=BEARTHER are at floating rates.
30,100,000 Tt (= & —
— £:10,016,000% it)
kB B R 7 7F X
873,744,0008 T (=& —
— £:766,537,00078
JT) ° ZEHBRID T
BEtE e
“E-CEFR XEEEERERLOA
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

2012 Annual Report

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group also holds
convertible bond issued by an associate with a
face value of HK$31,200,000 which bears fixed
interest rates of 5% per annum (2011: 5% per
annum). In addition, the Group also had loans to
an associate with principal amount of HKS$
158,884,000 (2011: HK$ 105,060,000), which
bears fixed interest rates of 8% (2011: 8% per
annum).

Except for the short-term borrowings of
HK$12,396,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$4,659,000), the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing liabilities.

At the respective balance sheet dates, if interest
rates had been increased by one percentage-
point and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s net profit would increase by
approximately HK$8,901,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: HK$7,737,000). The
fluctuation is attributable to interest income from
pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with initial
terms of over three months and short-term bank

deposits, and interest expense on bank
borrowings.
“E-CEFHR KEEEZERAERLA
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the Company’s
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or

sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group was in a net cash
position (total borrowings were less than cash and
cash equivalents).

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2012 and 2011
were as follows:

—E—_F —_E——F

2012 2011

TERT TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

& & % 28 (Mt 5£18) Total borrowings (Note 18) 12,396 4,659
REMBATFEEE Loan from non-controlling shareholder

RNER of a subsidiary

(Mt 5£36(€)) (Note 36(e)) 7,500 7,500

19,896 12,159

& & #A58 Total equity 2,199,594 2,151,088

BREEELE Gearing ratio 0.9% 0.6%

TR EEEELEEMEER
REBEINRITEEMB -

KEEBEERERAT
Win Hanverky Holdings

Limited

The increase in the gearing ratio above resulted
primarily from the additional bank borrowings.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The method by which the fair values of financial
instruments are established are categorised as follows:

@iy Level 1:
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

(i)  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(for example,

as prices) or indirectly (for

example, derived from prices).

(iii) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are

MEEEEE2EERE not based on observable market data.
BBEAER o
FE=H
Level 3
TR
HK$’000
R-EBE-—£+-A=t+—8H As at 31 December 2012
AREESHERE Available-for-sale financial assets —
BEAFEFARFHEERZ Financial assets at fair value through
CRMEE profit or loss 33,354
R-E-——-%+=-A=1t—-H As at 31 December 2011
AL EEsmERE Available-for-sale financial assets —
BEAFLEFANGRFSEE 2 Financial assets at fair value through profit
TREE or loss 31,790

AEERERBERZESHEM
RALEYIE LT QR BT AR R
BEFNREDBREAFETA
BNSER2EREEME
M) DREDPRE=REAT
B - AFEZEBEAMGE
RMERE - ZShERMSRE
RUBZEmHBEEIHRER)
RERWARMGE -

The Group’s investment in convertible bonds issued by
an unlisted company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands, which was classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (Note 11), was measured
at fair value according to Level 3 under the hierarchy.
The fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques involve the use
of observable market data where it is available and

entity specific estimates.
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cREREE@ 3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 AT {EME @ 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

AEBREXFNBERE(X
BDEMRINFELH AR Z
10%EHZ D ERTHHESRE
E (ME11(0))  DRESRE=
RELATFEFE RZT-—Z=F
tZA=+-HB THHESH
EEAFEZRBRERREATZ
REEGMBMRR - UBEE
EFEILETE LYRRHSE
BlAsFZREERER - AEER
EREFE-H-

THREJEEZE-FE--F+=A

The Group’s 10% interest in an unlisted

company incorporated in the United States of America

equity

(“USA”), which was classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 11(b)), was measured at fair
value according to Level 3 under the hierarchy. The
fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets was
determined by using ‘share of net asset’ approach
which was based on the unaudited financial position of
the investee company as at 31 December 2012 with a
discount for non-controlling interests according to the
market practice. This valuation technique is consistent
with the previous year.

The following table presents the changes in the

ST-HLEEE=RT A% carrying amounts of Level 3 instruments for the year
B ended 31 December 2012:
BAFETARR
REECEREE
AHEESRMEE Financial
Available-for- assets at fair
sale financial value through
assets profit or loss
FTERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
F 1) Beginning of the year — 31,790
@B ESZE5 Interest income accrued from — 1,564
Z R E WA convertible bonds
F# End of the year — 33,354

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of

IREERERE SRR EM
BRRTBEREREAFEZ
REAY - AREFEHEKE - U
BRASENEEESRTATE
MENEFRAERRENES
mEMGEHMEENDFE-

reasonable

financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

ZE-ZEER  AREEERBERAF
2012 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



g g ot fh et R A B

ARARBBELRIEGMRE (B
EZEBRATHERGENRRER
FRED) > BaarRABERE RN -

ARBEHRRELMETRER - AR
BRMGE  FEEFMAFESHEER
FENERXE -BEAARTER
ETEMBFELEERAGEREEN
REAABRNGIIRBRNOT »

(@) W% BERKRERLME
RERE

Tt fE ARENREE TR E A RE
NEHRREEE - BIAETH
B - TREHETIREER
EERTEHENEE - 2%
AEABRAE R o

S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and land use rights (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset value may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell or net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
Changing
management in assessing impairment,

rate. the assumptions selected by
including the
discount rates, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial position and results of
operations. If there is a significant adverse change in
the projected performance and resulting future cash
flow projections, it may be necessary to take an

impairment charge to the income statement.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions, or based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations according to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic
the use of

benefits from intangible assets.

Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, and it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that

have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful

lives; and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and residual values
and therefore depreciation/amortisation expense in

future periods.
Estimated impairment of goodwill
has

The Group tests annually whether goodwill

suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These

calculations require the use of estimates (Note 8).
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

The goodwill being allocated to the golf and high-end
fashion apparel manufacturing business resulted from
the acquisition of Charmtech Group, which is included
in the manufacturing segment. No impairment was
recognised against this goodwill during the year ended
31 December 2012.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for this CGU had been one percentage-
point lower than management’s estimates at 31
December 2012 (that is, 21% instead of 22%), and the
estimated cost of capital used in determining the pre-
rate for the CGU had been one
percentage-point higher than management’s estimates
(that s,
against goodwill would be recognised by the Group.

tax discount

12% instead of 11%), still no impairment

Estimated impairment of trademarks

The Group tests whether the trademarks have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amount of
the trademarks has been determined as the higher of
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
i.e., the amount for which the asset could be sold
between knowledgeable and willing parties, net of

estimated costs of disposal.

No impairment (2011: an impairment of
HK$112,000,000) was charged against the trademarks
during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on current market
conditions and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each

reporting period.

changes in market conditions.

Trade, bills and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade, bills and other receivables based
on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of customers and other debtors and current
market conditions, and requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Management reassesses the provision

at the end of each reporting period.
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(g9) Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management expects it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available to utilise the temporary
differences or tax losses. Management reassesses its
expectation at the end of each reporting period.

(h) Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market condition existing at
the end of each reporting period. The Group has used
discounted cash flow analysis for financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss that are not traded in
active markets.

Segment Information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Committee comprising the executive directors
of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Executive
Committee reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources and report
segment performance based on internal reporting.

2012 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment Information (Continued)

The Executive Committee reviews the performance of the
Group mainly from a business operation perspective. The
Group is organised into two main business segments,
namely (i) Manufacturing, and (ii) Distribution and Retail. The
Manufacturing segment represents manufacturing of
sportswear, golf and high-end fashion apparel, and active
and outer wear, primarily under OEM arrangements to
customers mainly in Europe, North America and Mainland
China. The Distribution and Retail segment represents the
distribution and retail of sportswear, footwear, accessories
and sports equipment in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
The discontinued operations represent the Umbro
distribution business which was terminated on 30 June 2012
(Note 32(b)).

The Executive Committee assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of operating
results of each segment, which excludes the effects of non-
recurring earnings and expenditures and finance income and
finance costs in the result for each operating segment.
Other information provided to the Executive Committee is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.
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5 2HER@ 5 Segment Information (Continued)
HE-_Z——H+-A=+—-HLEFE The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012
ZOWEEWT: are as follows:

BALEEEK
# % (Umbro
DHER)
Total

BHELE  discontinued
ELF L operations

SHREBE Total (Umbro

4£E Distribution continuing  distribution Foh

Manufacturing and retail operations business) Total

TET THT FTERT THT THT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2 AW = Total segment revenue 2,829,014 252,815 3,081,829 10,656 3,092,485

2 20 W Inter-segment revenue (4,571) - (4,571) - (4,571)

Iy & Revenue 2,824,443 252,815 3,077,258 10,656 3,087,914
BERFSE)/ Operating profit

D EEE (loss)/segment results 175,888 (51,332) 124,556 8,694 133,250

EE-L 0N Finance income 27,211

EE-§7% Finance costs (2,330)

FE AL B & N B R A Share of profits of associates 4,249 - 4,249 - 4,249

BR T B B AT R R Profit before income tax 162,380

PrS B X Income tax expense (42,353)

FEERA Profit for the year 120,027
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2 HER @ 5 Segment Information (Continued)
HE-_Z——H+-HA=t+—-HULEFE Other segment items included in the consolidated income
SPARHA Rz EMMAHEENT statement for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as
follows:

BRLEEEK

# % (Umbro

DHER)

Total

BHE&E discontinued
EX:F L operations

AEREBE Total (Umbro
£E Distribution continuing  distribution @t
Manufacturing and retail  operations business) Total
THT TR Tz TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR AREEE Amortisation of land use rights 565 - 565 - 565
W% BERFZENE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 79,719 12,365 92,084 7 92,091
BREESE Amortisation of intangible assets - 1,408 1,408 - 1,408
ME BERZERE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment - 2,837 2,837 334 3,171
BERERE Impairment of inventories, net 31,243 16,064 47,307 - 47,307
FEUWIRFEE /(B E)  Impairment/(write-back) of receivables,
FE net 1,127 (1,428) (301) (2,365) (2,666)
HEME WERHEME  Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
B/ () F8 plant and equipment, net 706 - 706 (107) 599
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5 2BER@ 5 Segment Information (Continued)
BHE_Z——F+-A=t—-HULEFE The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011
ZOWEEWT: are as follows:

BARLEEER
# % (Umbro
DHER)
Total

BEKE  discontinued

ES Tk operations

AHREE Total (Umbro

4£E  Distribution continuing distribution ‘et

Manufacturing and retail operations business) Total

FET TET TET TET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2 AW = Total segment revenue 2,937,735 263,595 3,201,330 113,099 3,314,429

A BEK R Inter-segment revenue (1,396) — (1,396) — (1,396)

[§:: Revenue 2,936,339 263,595 3,199,934 113,099 3,313,033
BERRN(FR)/ Operating profit

ABEE (loss)/segment results 165,122 (168,074) (2,952) 161,654 158,702

HEBA Finance income 13,660

MERA Finance costs (2,411)

EEEEAREE Share of losses of associates (349) — (349) — (349)

B Fit 18 Bt A % A Profit before income tax 169,602

REBREX Income tax expense (28,919)

FERA Profit for the year 140,683
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2 HER @ 5 Segment Information (Continued)

BE2-2--F5+-A=t-HLHEE
AAGHABR2EMDHIEEMT !

Other segment items included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as

follows:
BRIEEEER
# % (Umbro
DEER)
Total
$ELE  discontinued
ES 3k operations
PHEREE Total (Umbro
4£E  Distribution continuing distribution @zt
Manufacturing and retail operations business) Total
TET TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AR Amortisation of land use rights 1,020 = 1,020 = 1,020
ME HEKRDERTE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 79,526 11,150 90,676 4,353 95,029
BREE#SE Amortisation of intangible assets — 4,314 4,314 — 4,314
ME BERZEHE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment — 2,746 2,746 9,487 12,233
BREERE Impairment of intangible assets — 112,000 112,000 14,851 126,851
AEHESBEERME Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets 500 — 500 — 500
BEHE/(BR)FHE Impairment/(write-back) of inventories, net 8,307 4,475 12,782 (1,086) 11,696
B Ui o LB R Impairment of receivables, net 275 7,362 7,637 13,568 21,205
HENE  BER Loss on disposal of property, plant and
REER equipment 29 7 36 719 755
RS EEKE Gain on termination of distribution rights
(Bf 5F32(b)) (Note 32(b)) — — — (214,500) (214,500)

PMEAXZHHREFERTLARLEH
TE MR FGELT -

Inter-segment transactions are conducted at terms mutually
agreed among group companies.

ITHEETEARELHERE WX
BERRE BREE RBEAT
WEE*@Q?E#A@HQEEZ
ETHMEE FE BUEZRR

BREMEWRSR RERREEE

Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights,
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments
in associates, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, inventories, trade, bills and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and bank deposits

W BEARTEREFREHRER
ZEANBRTER - RO BREEEZE
BEFELERERNREERRESEE
W-ATREREREERSHEE

ITHERTEERELLEAB - RDH
EEIERRELEREHAEERNE
FiEHasE -

with initial terms of over three months. Unallocated assets
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents held for
corporate uses, tax recoverables and deferred income tax
assets.

Segment liabilities comprise mainly operating liabilities.
Unallocated liabilities mainly comprise deferred income tax
liabilities and current income tax liabilities.
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5 2BER@ 5 Segment Information (Continued)
EXBAXBELIMERE WE B Capital expenditure comprises additions to land use rights,
BRRBEREFEENTE BEE property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets,
BEBSHNKBRELENTE - including additions resulting from acquisitions through

business combinations.

R-B——HF+=-A=+—-HB2ZH 8B The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2012 and
EREERBE=-ZE——-—F+=-A=+ capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:
—HLEFEMNERBEINT:
BRLBERH
#% (Umbro
PHER)
Total

BELE  discontinued
E3 3 L operations

PHEREE Total (Umbro
“£E Distribution continuing distribution 2B @t
Manufacturing and retail operations business) Unallocated Total
TER TER TER TER TER TiER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
£E Assets 1,948,013 427,766 2,375,779 698 421,037 2,797,514
BenNg Associates 38,032 - 38,032 - - 38,032
BLEE Total assets 1,986,045 427,766 2,413,811 698 421,037 2,835,546
E=N Total liabilities 516,905 56,077 572,982 4,445 58,525 635,952
N BT Capital expenditure 132,803 8,423 141,226 - - 141,226
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2 HER @ 5 Segment Information (Continued)
R-E——5+-A=+—Hz2HBE The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2011 and
EREGERBE-Z——H+-A=+ capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:
—HEEENERAHEZNT:
BRLEEE
% (Umbro
FHER)
Total
BELE  discontinued
(K88 operations
PHRBE Total (Umbro
4£E  Distribution  continuing distribution R0 E st
Manufacturing and retail  operations business)  Unallocated Total
TiEx TERL TERL TEx TiEn TERL
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BE Assets 2,311,186 387133 2,698,319 53,260 102,837 2,854,416
BEAR Associates 33,010 — 33,010 — — 33,010
BEE Total assets 2,344,196 387133 2,731,329 53,260 102,837 2,887,426
#am Total liabilities 574,097 54112 628,209 25,222 82,907 736,338
-NEF Capital expenditure 66,364 11,100 77,464 960 — 78,424
REEY  AEEREIKREE S The Group’s revenue from external customers by
WHIMT: geographical location is as follows:
—g--% —g——f
2012 2011
FTER TR
HK$’000 HK$°000
I %= Revenue
BB Hong Kong 238,899 210,095
R K FE Mainland China 554,212 635,992
HiZmNE R Other Asian countries 484,354 578,078
BN Europe 1,210,634 1,213,188
ERNRERE United States of America 244,950 236,235
mEx Canada 50,125 57,441
Hith Others 294,084 268,905
3,077,258 3,199,934
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2 EE R @) 5

AEERHBEE I CRBEIREER
BRNEEMELERE -

Segment Information (Continued)

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined
by the final destination of delivery of the products.

—E-—_F —E——F
2012 2011
FER TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
2Bk = 2 Analysis of revenue by category

HEEmR Sales of goods 3,066,981 3,189,850
Rty ER%E Provision of subcontracting services 8,010 7,714

REBTEEHE Provision of concessionaire sales service
PR 75 U A income 2,267 2,370
3,077,258 3,199,934

RBIAIZHRBDEE(ERMIAR
BERBHREERN BBEMT:

The total
instruments and deferred income tax assets by geographical

of non-current assets other than financial

location is as follows:

—g-=% g%

2012 2011

FTAERT FTHET

HK$°000 HK$'000

&5 Hong Kong 44,693 36,336
B K BE Mainland China 570,082 612,845
HMBER Other countries 156,638 45,845
771,413 695,026

BE-_ZT-—_—F+-RA=+-HL#%E
B g3 #92,478,343,00008 T (=&
——1%:2,536,955,00058T) : 1hAE
B #80.5% (= & — — F:
79.3%)  NREE—ARINIRES ©
HERBDREEEER -

ZE-ZEER O AREEERBERAF
2012 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenues of
approximately HK$2,478,343,000 (2011: HK$2,536,955,000),
representing 80.5% (2011: 79.3%) of the Group’s total
revenue, were derived from a single group of external
revenues are attributable to the

customers. These

manufacturing business.
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TihfE ARG 6t 6 Land use rights - Consolidated
AEBRESH T EAEESENE The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
NEEHERBR HIREFE DT W0 operating lease payments and their net book amounts are
T analysed as follows:
—E—_F —E——fF
2012 2011
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHREAREREE: In Mainland China held on:
T ERENTF Land use rights of between 10 and
102504 50 years 19,226 19,733
—8-=% —E-——fF
2012 2011
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
=30 Beginning of the year 19,733 40,066
B+ =% Exchange differences 58 1,150
B Amortisation (565) (1,020)
AFEHEEREBERE Land use rights classified as
i+ i 57 A R non-current assets held for sale
(Mt 5£32(a)) (Note 32(a)) - (20,463)
FHR End of the year 19,226 19,733
BNKEHERENH#BHECTA—R Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments has been
il included in general and administrative expenses.
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7 WME -BERJE-S6H 7 Property, plant and equipment -
Consolidated
KA%HE
i t#HREF HAENEEE BEREE GARRE SEREE HEIR @5t
Furniture Motor
Freehold Land and Leasehold  Plant and and  vehicles Construction
lands buildings improvements machinery equipment and yacht in progress Total
TERL TR TERL TERT TERT TERL TR TERL
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
W=2--%-A-8  At1January 2011
S Cost 2,700 152,162 262,570 436,965 184,365 35,213 8,229 1,082,204
ZHTERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment — (20,739) (112,297)  (202,303)  (136,953) (15,914) —  (488,206)
REFE Net book amount 2,700 131,423 150,273 234,662 47412 19,299 8,229 593,998

HZ-Z--%1-A= Year ended

+-ALEE 31 December 2011
ENREFE Opening net book amount 2,700 131,423 150,273 234,662 47,412 19,299 8,229 593,998
EREH Exchange differences — 2,494 5,787 6,400 1,218 207 457 16,563
wE Additions — 2,300 14,923 34,264 17,380 4,466 5,091 78,424
fob Transfers — — 1,256 — — — (1,256) —
HE Disposals — — — — (790) (255) = (1,045)
i Impairment - - (705) — (1,299 (229) — (12233
e Depreciation — (@55 @7014)  (39542)  (20047)  (3,869) — (95029)
ERTORIEEEERE  Transferred to discontinued

(H&E32(b)) operations (Note 32(b)) — — — — (341) - - (341)
FREAFE Closing net book amount 2,700 131,660 144,520 235,784 33,533 19,619 12,521 580,337
R-ZF--£+-H=1 At 31 December 2011

-
BA Cost 2,700 157,257 287,317 480,022 115,063 38,008 12,521 1,092,888
2 RERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment —  (25597) (142797)  (244,238)  (81530)  (18,389) —  (512,551)

RE R E Net book amount 2,700 131,660 144,520 235,784 33,533 19,619 12,521 580,337
BZ-3--f Year ended

T-B=t+-HALEE 31 December 2012
EAREFE Opening net book amount 2,700 131,660 144,520 235,784 33,533 19,619 12,521 580,337
EREH Exchange differences 333 344 1,602 1,194 90 45 480 4,088
WE Additions 42,615 3,150 17,335 12,016 12,675 5193 48,242 141,226
B Transfers — — 715 — — — (715) —
e Disposals - - (1,083) (143) (99) (491) — (1816
HiE Impairment - - (623) - (2,214) — - (2,837)
e Depreciation — (5020 (27,248) (39442  (15770)  (4,604) — (92,084)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 45,648 130,134 135,218 209,409 28,215 19,762 60,528 628,914
R=B-= At 31 December 2012

+ZA=t-H
R Cost 45,648 160,860 304,289 493,778 127,877 40,309 60,528 1,233,289
ZHRERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment —  (30,726) (169,071)  (284,369)  (99,662)  (20,547) —  (604,375)

REFE Net book amount 45,648 130,134 135,218 209,409 28,215 19,762 60,528 628,914
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S RB{EKE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ME BBERZE-S68®
KAXRELTHURNERFZRBIBER
RIFE o

EEHABRERINTERI MW
T

Property, plant and equipment -
Consolidated (continued)

Freehold lands are located in the Hashemite Kingdom of
Jordan and Cambodia.

Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated income
statement is analysed as follows:

—E-C-fF —E-—F

2012 2011

TR TET

HK$°000 HK$’000

SHE R A Cost of sales 54,898 54,879
—RRTHEX General and administrative expenses 37,186 40,150
92,084 95,029

HIEE 182,837,000 T (ZE——5F:
12,233,00078 jt) B 5t A— MR R 1T B8
A e

Impairment loss included in general and administrative
expenses amounted to HK$2,837,000 (2011:
HK$12,233,000).
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SHEBEHRRMT Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 BEEE — &4 8 Intangible assets — Consolidated
EFB#%
B 5k Customer 45t
Trademarks Goodwill relationships Total
FTART TART TART THER
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R=-Z——%—-A—H At 1 January 2011
2% Cost 221,387 87,461 2,219 311,067
S EHERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (76,877)  (39,058) (2,219) (118,154)
IR E F B Net book amount 144,510 48,403 — 192,913
BE-_Z——F% Year ended 31 December 2011
+-A=+-HLEE
FREFE Opening net book amount 144,510 48,403 — 192,913
ERER Exchange differences — 198 — 198
a5 Amortisation (4,314) — = (4,314)
1A Impairment (112,000) (14,851) — (126,851)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 28,196 33,750 — 61,946
R=2——%+=-H=1+—H At 31 December 2011
B AR Cost 221,387 72,808 2,219 296,414
ZtEERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (193191)  (39,058) (2,219)  (234,468)
IR EDF B Net book amount 28,196 33,750 — 61,946
HE-Z-——F Year ended 31 December 2012
+-A=+-RALEE
FAREFE Opening net book amount 28,196 33,750 - 61,946
£ Amortisation (1,408) - - (1,408)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 26,788 33,750 - 60,538
R=ZZE--—&+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2012
XA Cost 221,387 72,808 2,219 296,414
S EHERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (194,599) (39,058) (2,219) (235,876)
R ¥ B Net book amount 26,788 33,750 - 60,538
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BREE — €6tw

#351,408,0008 T (=2 ——F : @5
KR {E & 15131,165,000% ) E 5t A—
RRATHRAXZA °

AR R E R

BEEETEAE BERRAMER
[Diadoral & E £ E R 5 E M &
[Diadora | EHNERWER - BE
MAKESENSREAFEREE
RANEE(EAEABERLEER S
MXBFLHEEENSERGETHE
B AR) & E o

BE-E-—_-Fft-A=t-HLHF
B REMETHOREMG  HER
ARBEBRCE-——F REBR
112,000,0007& 7t) °

S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangible assets — Consolidated (continued)

Amortisation of HK$1,408,000 (2011: amortisation and
impairment loss of HK$131,165,000) was included in general
and administrative expenses.

Impairment test for trademarks:

Trademarks represent the rights to use the ‘Diadora’
trademarks for the manufacture and sale of products bearing
the ‘Diadora’ trademarks in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. The recoverable amount of the trademarks is
determined by reference to its fair value less costs to sell,
i.e. the amount for which the asset could be sold between
knowledgeable and willing parties, net of estimated costs of
disposal.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no impairment
loss (2011: an impairment loss of HK$112,000,000) was
recognised based on the impairment assessment performed.
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548K HEKE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 BEEE — &6t 8 Intangible assets — Consolidated (cContinued)
BEERENR: Impairment tests for goodwill:

BEIEERBEXBE I BRBENLE
o AEEREELEMNT:

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment and geographical location
and is as follows:

BRIEEE
i —
Umbro BREARE
DHER = AR I i
Discontinued B 8 4 &
operations —  Golf and high-
Umbro end fashion
distribution apparel 5t
business  manufacturing Total
FET FET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
IR % B Net book amount
R=-Z——%—-A—H As at 1 January 2011 14,653 33,750 48,403
[EHER Exchange difference 198 — 198
R (it 5E32(b)) Impairment (Note 32(b)) (14,851) — (14,851)
R-ZZE——F+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2011 — 33,750 33,750
R-ZE-—-%—-HA—H As at 1 January and
k+=H=+-—-H 31 December 2012 — 33,750 33,750
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BREE — 66w

REELBEUNTRKRSEDRERE
REBHELLEE - ZEHEER
REEEEBHRSHARRSREER
HEEEBHENTFRAREDRD
ERBHREN -—FHUEREME
WBRAREREER  BHERER
EMREREcREREUTXMZ
FIZEERRER - HREFEBR
TELAENMEEEBORBFHE
RE-

S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangible assets — Consolidated (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period for the
golf and high-end fashion apparel manufacturing business
and one-year for the sportswear distribution business. Cash
flows beyond the period covered in approved budgets are
extrapolated using the key assumptions stated below. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the businesses in which the cash-generating units

operate.
—E-C-F —E2—-f
2012 2011
SHEXRR BHEARE BALSEEK
EEGE G — Umbro
REE fR & 4 & PHES
Golf and Golf and  Discontinued
high-end high-end operations
fashion fashion — Umbro
apparel apparel distribution
manufacturing  manufacturing business
HEEHE Budgeted gross margin 22% 26% 1%
REEERERED Growth rate used to extrapolate cashflows
BEMEVERE beyond the budget period 2% 2% 0%
AR % Pre-tax discount rate 1% 11% RER
undiscounted

EEEREBARARANTEER
NESEEEEEAE

BHE-Z-—H+-A=+—HL#F
B YERSHERRE S KR
SEERRLELENEINME -

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectations of market
development.

No impairment was recognised in respect of the golf and
high-end fashion apparel manufacturing business CGU
during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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RHBRAZRE-EQT 9

Investments in subsidiaries - Company

—E-CF —E——fF
2012 2011
FTExT TERT
HK$’000 HK$°000
REFLITRAD Investment in unlisted shares,

g N at cost 538,341 538,341

ERKHBEAREE Amounts due from subsidiaries,
(M &£ (a)) (Note (a)) 894,752 967,016
1,433,093 1,505,357

THARZE-—Z-F+ZA=1t—-HE
TEMBATIREMFE:

£

Name

EZENERAR
Bowker Asia Limited

ERHAREROTR)ERAR
Bowker Garment Accessories
(Heyuan) Company Limited

ERERERERLA
Bowker Garment Accessories
Company Limited

Bowker Garment Factory
(Cambodia) Company Limited

Bowker Garment Investment
(Cambodia) Company Limited

—E-—FER
2012 Annual Report

HERAIHER

EEEREL

Place of incorporation and
type of legal entity

ABRZES(RLEE)).
BREEAT

British Virgin Islands (“BVI”),
limited liability company

HEAE HEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

E# BREEAF
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

RER BRERLE
Cambodia, limited liability
Company

REE ARERLT
Cambodia, limited liability
Company

XEEEZERERAA

The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of

which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2012:

BRORAKGHTE
Particulars of
issued share capital

100% T
Us$100

4,200,000% 7t
US$4,200,000

10,0008 7T
HK$10,000

REFFHH4,000,000
KHR4,000,000

%317 74,000,000
KHR4,000,000

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

GRREBzEL
Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

the Group
Z%-Zf CE--f
2012 2011
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% —
100% —

TREHREELY
Principal activities and
place of operation

BERKER/BR
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

LERKER/TEAXE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

REERREERKER/BE

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

LERRER/REF
Manufacturing of garment
products/Cambodia

NELE/RBR
Property holding/Cambodia



REBRARZRE-ADT @ 9

1

Name

EERRE(EDERAA
Bowker Garment Factory (Yunfu)
Company Limited

EERXBARAA
Bowker Garment Factory
Company Limited

EEAFEOTR) ERAH
Bowker Printing Factory
(Heyuan) Company Limited

BEEERRE (TR ARAA
Bowker Sportswear (Heyuan)
Company Limited

BEARERE(ER)ARAT
Bowker Venture Garment (Yunfu)
Company Limited

Bowker (Vietnam) Garment
Factory Company Limited

ERdEERIERAR
Bowker Vietnam
Holding Limited

EERZ(ENEXERAA
Bowker Yao Wao (Huizhou)
Garment Company Limited

EREIHER
EEEREL

Place of incorporation and
type of legal entity

HEAE NERELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

B BRERLA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HEAE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HEAE NERELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

hEAE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

B REEAF
Vietnam,
limited liability company

R BREAAH
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

hEAE AEEELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

Investments in subsidiaries

(Continued)

BRARAKGFE
Particulars of
issued share capital

22,000,000 7T
HK$22,000,000

10,000 T & &R
200,000 TR E
BER G (K3 (b))

HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$200,000 non-voting
deferred (Note (b))

55,508,4607% 1T
HK$55,508,460

15,400,000% 70
US$15,400,000

80,000,000 70
HK$80,000,000

15,600,0003% 7T
HK$15,600,000

1,000,000% 7t
HK$1,000,000

16,000,0003% 7t
HK$16,000,000

2012 Annual

BRNSE ER
Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

the Group
ZE-ZfF C-E--F
2012 2011
85% 85%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

—B-—EEH

Report

KEREZERERLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- Company

IREHREELY
Principal activities and
place of operation

EERRER/TEKKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

BEHRER/&E
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

LEPRERNBER/HEKE

Manufacturing of printing and
embroidery products/
Mainland China

EERRER/TEKKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

LERKER/TEAE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

LERRER/HE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Vietnam

REZRREEAKER/EBE

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

LERRER/TAKE

Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China
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REBRARZRE-ADT @ 9

£

Name

EERARKROTR) BRAR
Bowker Yee Sing Garment
Factory (Heyuan)
Company Limited

EBE¥ERAT
Charmtech Industrial Limited

EH(ER)ERBRAN
Charmtech (Qing Yuan) Garment
Manufacturing Limited

Corus Investments Limited

BESREERR (R ERAR
Diadora Sportswear (Shenzhen)
Limited

RNEERERRERAR
Guangzhou Win Sports Limited

RATHRARKERAT
Guangzhou Yuming Garment
Limited

BYXEGHERAR
Kaiping Win Hanverky Textile
Company Limited

FEEEHRARLA
Qing Yuan BowCharm Garment
Manufacturing Limited

—E-—FER
2012 Annual Report

EREIHER
EEEREL

Place of incorporation and
type of legal entity

HEAE AEBELR
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

E# BREELF
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HERE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

R BRELLH
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HEAE HEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

REAE NEEELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HEAE NEBELR
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HERE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HERE NEBELR
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

XEEEZERERAA

Investments in subsidiaries

(Continued)

BRORAKGHE
Particulars of
issued share capital

120,000,000 ¢
HK$120,000,000

50,0007 T
HK$50,000

12,112,242 70
HK$12,112,242

10,000 7T
HK$10,000

AK%110,000,0007%
RMB110,000,000

20,000,000 10
HK$20,000,000

3,800,000% 7t
HK$3,800,000

5,522,813% 7
US$5,522,813

17,500,000% 7v
HK$17,500,000

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

BRREEZER

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

the Group
Z3-Zf C3--f
2012 2011
1% 1%
75% 75%
75% 75%
#100% #100%
60% 60%
75% 75%
70% 70%
100% 100%
75% 75%

SHEBEHRRMT Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- Company

IREHREELY
Principal activities and
place of operation

EERRER/TEKKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

REERREEAKRER/BH

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

EERRER/HEKKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

NELE/ER
Property holding/Hong Kong

BEERTEARER/PEAKE

Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China

BERZEARER/TEAKE
Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China

EERRER/TEKKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

LERBEGAR /HEAE
Manufacturing and trading of
fabrics/Mainland China

EERRER/TEKKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China



S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBRARZRE-ADT @ 9

1

Name

Portico Il Limited

A (ER)ERAR
Rich Form (HK) Limited

EFTEAAREERAT
Sport City Garment Factory
Company Limited

ERUARAR
Sports Corner Limited

Team & Sports (BVI) Limited

REBRERAR(RINERAR
Team & Sports
(Shenzhen) Limited

RERTERAA
Team & Sports Limited

XHIERAH
Win Form Apparel Limited

XE(ME)ERAT
Win Hanverky (China)
Company Limited

EREIHER
EEEREL

Place of incorporation and
type of legal entity

nex BEREELH
Canada,
limited liability company

B BRERLA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HEKKE NERELR
Mainland China, foreign
equity joint venture

R BRELAA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

RZBE BREALH
BVI, limited liability company

HEXE AEBELR
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

E# HREELA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

BB BRELAA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

E# HREELA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Investments in subsidiaries

(Continued)

BRARAKGFE
Particulars of
issued share capital

10070
CA$100

10,000/ 10
HK$10,000

550,000% 1t
US$550,000

500,000% 1t
HK$500,000

10,000% 7t
US$10,000

AK#5,000,0007
RMB5,000,000

900,000% 1t
HK$900,000

10,000 10
HK$10,000

10,000% 7T
HK$10,000

2012

Annual Report

BRNSE ER
Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

the Group
Zg-ZF CE--f
2012 2011
100% 100%
70% 70%
2.1% 72.7%
75% 75%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

—E-ZFEH

KEREZERERLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

- Company

IREHREELY
Principal activities and
place of operation

REABRRE,/MEX
Provision of agency service/
Canada

BEHRER/&E
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

EERRER/TEKKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

TEERRER/ER
Retailing of garment
products/Hong Kong

REBR/BE
Investment holding/
Hong Kong

BERRER/TEAE
Trading of garment products/
Mainland China

BEHNRER/EE
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

BEHRER/AE
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

BERKER/BE

Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong
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REBRARZRE-ADT @ 9

L]

Name

XERE(ER)BRAR
Win Hanverky Limited

XEHHERLT
Win Hanverky Textile Limited

EEEBARES(LEB)ERAT
Win Sports Trading (Shanghai)
Company Limited

KEERERAR
Winor International
Company Limited

ENTEERRERLA
Wuzhou Bowker Garment
Company Limited

ERALHER
EERRER

Place of incorporation and
type of legal entity

B8 BREALA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

R BRELLH
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HERE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

R BERELLH
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HERE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

# ZOBNROMADNEERESE H
A HADREEES -

(@) ERKBRARABESANEEHERE
MEARRBNORARE  HEE
DEHKELRRENS 5 HEK G

o

fim

—E-—FER
2012 Annual Report

XEEEZERERAA

SHEBEHRRMT Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries - Company

(Continued)

BRARAFE
Particulars of
issued share capital

10,0008 T & B R
1,000,0008 T H R E
BER G (5 (D)

HK$10,000 ordinary

HK$1,000,000 non-voting

deferred (Note (b))

2,000,000% 7t
HK$2,000,000

5,000,000% 70
HK$5,000,000

260,000,003 1t
HK$260,000,003

86,292,165/ 1T
HK$86,292,165

BRREEZES
Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

the Group
- C-%--%
2012 2011
100% 100%
100% 100%
75% 75%
60% 60%
100% 100%

IEXBREELY
Principal activities and
place of operation

BEHRRER/&E
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

LEREBHER/
ERRTEAE

Manufacturing and trading of
fabrics/Hong Kong and
Mainland China

BERZEARER/PEAXE
Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China

REBR/EE
Investment holding/
Hong Kong

LERRER/TEKKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

# The shares of this company are held directly by the Company;

others are held indirectly by the Company.

Notes:

(@) Amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding by

the Company to the

respective subsidiaries and are

measured in accordance with the Company’s accounting

policy for investments in subsidiaries.

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9

10

RMBLARIZRE-AAF@E 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company
(Continued)

MEE (%) Notes: (Continued)

() EREERELERMLFAREEFM (b)  The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
BE ZERVUERERE  BR* These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
E B A8 MK &F B A dividends unless the net profit of the relevant company
100,000,000,00058 7t » & 8l & #& exceeds HK$100,000,000,000 and are not entitled to any
ESRE MERFEBELAEME distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
T B R BB AE 2 K HK$100,000,000,000 has been distributed by the relevant
100,000,000,000 it » & Bl A B company to the holders of its ordinary shares.
BREPEERRSIK -

(©) REBE-ZE-——-F+-A=t+-HL (¢)  None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
FEEMERD  MEQ=LEEM time during the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: None).
BRAEEER(ZT——F 1 8|)o

ETHEAGHRNEEERNELERE The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best

HASEEEEREERANTXERE effort by the management of the Group to translate their

EREELESE Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

RBE AR 2R - &6 10 Interests in associates - Consolidated

—8-=% —E-——%

2012 2011

THER FTHERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

F 4 Beginning of the year 33,010 32,107
FERGREEZD Share of reserve movements for the

year 773 1,252

FEERIEEF(BE) Share of profits/(losses) for the year 4,249 (349)

FH End of the year 38,032 33,010
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10

136

REENTZESZ-S6@ 10 Interests in associates - Consolidated

UTARZZ-ZF+-A=t—-HBA
SEBRERFEIRLET) NS

iR

Name

EREEFERR(TR)AR

Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing
Factory (Heyuan)
Company Limited

EEREERAA
Fu Hsun Investment
Company Limited

Fu Jin Bowker
Company Limited

AEBEEEBENTNEE  BE W

(Continued)

EREIHER

EEERED BRORARRAFE

Place of incorporation and Particulars of

type of legal entity issued paid up capital
AR HEAE NEBELE 7,670,000% 7t

Mainland China, wholly foreign ~ US$7,670,000
owned enterprise

REEE BREMLT 7,820,000% 70
BVI, limited liability company ~ US$7,820,000

ERHS BRERLA 2,900,000% 7T
BVI, limited liability company ~ US$2,900,000

BEAERE

Interest held indirectly

gk
2012

30%

30%

30%

The following are details of the Group’s associates, all of
which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2012:

IEXBREELE

ZZ--% Principal activities and

2011 place of operation

30% HRAHEREE/ PEAE

Fabrics dyeing

and supply/

Mainland China

30% RERRRGROLRMEE/ A%
Investment holding and
fabrics dyeing and supply/

Taiwan

30% REAE/HE

Sourcing of fabrics/Taiwan

The Group’s shares of the assets, liabilities, revenue and

mREEWT: results of the associates are as follows:
—B-=f —E——f
2012 2011
FERT FTExT

HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets 69,273 64,424
aE Liabilities 31,241 31,010
I %= Revenue 99,575 133,235
FERA (BB Profits/(losses) for the year 4,249 (349)

“E-"FER XEEEERAERLT
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11

EMIA

11 Financial instruments

Consolidated

BAYE
PN
HEREZ
ERHEE
Financial
assets at

EHX K fair value

EWiR  through
Loans and  profit or #t
—Z2-——f+=ZA=t+—H 31 December 2012 receivables loss Total
TERT THERT THERT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
REEEBRITH Assets as per balance sheet
BE
EXRTFHELA Loans to an associate 173,493 - 173,493
RELETRZZRE Investment in unlisted securities - 33,354 33,354
FHEZERKRE Trade and bills receivable 325,697 — 325,697
&R Hth FEULIR 5K Deposits and other receivables 73,003 - 73,003
IR FRITER Pledged bank deposits 1,244 - 1,244
EEHREB=MA Bank deposits with initial terms of
ZETER over three months 30,100 = 30,100
BeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 946,565 — 946,565
32 8 64
BX AR 5 i 2
cRWEE
Other
financial
liabilities
at
amortised
cost
TERT
HK$’000
REEEBERITHER Liabilities as per balance sheet
ENEZERRREE Trade and bills payable (271,836)
BE Borrowings (12,396)
REKE QB IFER Loan from a non-controlling
RERHE R shareholder of a subsidiary (7,500)
“E-CE5H  ABEEERERLT
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11 @I B 11 Financial instruments (Continued)
BAFETA
& A = 5 18
ZEMEE
EXR Financial
FEW IR assets at fair
Loans and value through @st
—2-——%4+=-A=+-H 31 December 2011 receivables profit or loss Total
FTAT FTET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REEEBRITHNEE Assets as per balance sheet

EXRTHE QT Loans to an associate 107,245 — 107,245
RELTEREEFEZRE Investment in unlisted securities — 31,790 31,790
FEREZRRAR RS Trade and bills receivable 436,552 — 436,552
&2 Rk H fth FE W X Deposits and other receivables 39,289 — 39,289
BT RTER Pledged bank deposits 1,839 — 1,839
REHREB=MA Bank deposits with initial terms of
ZITER over three months 10,016 = 10,016
BeRESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 790,975 — 790,975
H fith 1%
84 B A< 5
iR 2 & B
af&
Other
financial
liabilities
at
amortised
cost
TET
HK$’000
REESBRITNERE Liabilities as per balance sheet
BREZRRRRE Trade and bills payable (353,232)
BE Borrowings (4,659)
REMB AR FER Loan from a non-controlling
R R & = shareholder of a subsidiary (7,500)

ZE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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11

£WMIEm

11 Financial instruments (Continued)

KT Company
EXK
FE UK #R X
Loans and
receivables
THER
HK$’000
—2--f+=ZA=+-H 31 December 2012
REEEBRITNEE Assets as per balance sheet
e & Hfth FE BOR X Deposits and other receivables 30,829
BeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 378,016
REEEBRITHER Liabilities as per balance sheet
S B A R K IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 395,224
H fth 12 # 86 B A
ik zemas
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FTHET
HK$’000
—E-—%+=ZH=+-—H 31 December 2011
REEEBRITNEE Assets as per balance sheet
& & Hfth FE WOk X Deposits and other receivables 326
BeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 88,083
REEEBRITHER Liabilities as per balance sheet
M B AR MKE Amounts due to subsidiaries 134,748

—E-—FER
2012 Annual Report
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11

140

£ T @

(a)

—E-—FEH
2012 Annual Report

BRAFEFAENIEEZ

11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

cREE — &6 loss — Consolidated
—E-C-F —E——F
2012 2011
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RELTREFZRE Investment in unlisted securities 33,354 31,790

R=—Z——%F  KEEHEShine
Gold Limited ([Shine Gold])
REBEREBATIHGZ B
bt AEERERBERSHES
70,000,000 jt 2 Shine Gold
ARRES  FEESFS /M
BT o AJRARESHHERTAM
ERASEESES%HNFIRTE
TAREERAERE2HERS
Shine GoldE &7 A& #160%
Z70% 0 REETFHREME o 7
BREFSRGEETRMEEE o

RZZFE——ENA+ B K&
E i AARNE£%531,200,00058 T
ZEHTRKRES HER
26 7% 2 BERERE - REHT
B REBREARMAES
2 I B ¥ Shine Gold Limited
ZHBREEHRREBEX
YEH MR-E--F1+=A
=+—H ' Shine Gold Limited
AREBEZHENT -

R=—Z2-——-—%5+-HA=+—-8"
HERT(REAEEY REE
MBYEEMT)ETRRES
ETALESMSE R=E—-F
+-A=+—H BRTERRE
FHREEEFEND FEME
Z AT ERGEFBRTE
REMkEEE -

XEEEERERAT
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

In 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with
Shine Gold Limited (“Shine Gold”) and its beneficial
owners, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
subscribe for convertible bonds of Shine Gold in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$70,000,000 which
would be issued in two tranches. The convertible
bonds bear interest from its date of issue at a rate of
5% per annum on the principal amount, and may be
converted in full into 60-70%

capital of Shine Gold any time over five years,

of the issued share

depending on certain conditions. The convertible

bonds were not traded on an active market.

On 16 August 2011, the Group acquired the first
tranche of convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$31,200,000, which
voting rights. Upon the first tranche completion, the

represents 26.7% potential
Group nominated representatives on the Board of
Directors and consequently has significant influence on
the financial and operating policy decisions of Shine
Gold Limited, which thus is an associate of the Group
at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the convertible bonds were
fair valued by Jones Lang LaSalle, an independent
firm of valuers not connected to the Group. As the
carrying values of the convertible bonds approximate
their fair values as at 31 December 2012, no gain/loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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11 €@IB®w

(a)

(b)

BATENABASEEZ
TRMEE — 6@

ERE FAEER-Z-Z=FZ
AZ+-BUBEXEA
38,800,000 jT #9 5% = #t AT #&
RES -

11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — Consolidated (Continued)

Subsequent to year end, the Group acquired the
second tranche of convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$38,800,000 on 21 February 2013.

THHEESHMEE — 66 (b) Available-for-sale financial assets —
Consolidated
—g-—f o
2012 2011
FTER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
n—B—H At 1 January - 500
H1E Impairment - (500)
R+t=A=+-—H At 31 December = —

FEERE-FINREFBRERE
AR R IE BT A F10% R
B o ZARRNEBMREERRE
REBRORZTESH - ZR
BEUERIIE X BEATHE
EEREE -BE_ZET——FF
“A=tT—HLEE AREARD
AIRREBFEE N - IR
B 55 18500,00058 7t » 3 5T A—
BRETHEY YERBRERLRE
EHEZERERS -

The Group has a 10% equity interest in an unlisted
company incorporated in the United States of America,
which is engaged in the design and distribution of
in the USA. This
investment is denominated in United States Dollars and

active wear and sportswear

assets.
December 2011, an

is classified as available-for-sale financial
During the year ended 31
impairment loss of HK$500,000 was recognised as a
result of the decrease in future profitability of the
investee company and has been included in general
and administrative expenses and impairment has been
fully provided for the whole investment.

ZE-ZEER AREEERBERAF
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12

13

142

7E — &6 12 Inventories — Consolidated
—E-C-f —E——F
2012 2011
FTHET FTET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE AR Raw materials 188,503 270,329
ERHm Work in progress 94,394 134,418
SR & Finished goods 168,102 233,930
450,999 638,677

7 & & A& %1,632,855,0008 5t (==
——411,774,415,0008 1) B2 & E

X WO ETABEERA o
FERERELNA47,307,000% T (=
E——:11,696,000 T) ' Bt A

BUESRRARRE — &6

The costs of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$1,632,855,000 (2011: HK$1,774,415,000).

Provision for impairment of inventories amounting to

approximately HK$47,307,000 (2011: HK$11,696,000) was
included in cost of sales.

13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated

—E-—F —E-——F
2012 2011
THERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE K B 5 iR 5K Trade receivables
— RBE=H — from third parties 316,455 428,169
— REBEERL — from related parties
(Bt 5£36(d)) (Note 36(d)) 1,923 1,705
FE W R 15 Bills receivable 13,145 14,495
331,523 444,369
W ORE R Less: provision for impairment (5,826) (7,817)
325,697 436,552
EUHEZRFIERZEBREELEEAF The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable

BEHEE -

“E-CEFHR KEEEZERBRLA
2012 Annual Report
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13

BREZRIRRE — &6

(&)

BRUESRNEIBZREARRFFEE
CRNEF FAEEREFFEHED
FEHNFI0E0K - KEBEHHE
ABOUTIRASNET MEADMBE
FHEEERRTELINERMRIM
FHBITEENTRIMHBE - BH
FHEHENRKEZRARREIR
BT

13

Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated
(Continued)

Maijority of trade receivables are with customers having an
appropriate credit history. The Group grants its customers
credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. Most of the
Group’s sales are on open account, while sales made to a
small number of customers are covered by letters of credit
issued by banks or settled by documents against payment
issued by banks. The ageing of trade and bills receivable
based on invoice date is as follows:

—B-=f —E-—-F

2012 2011

THET TAERT

HK$’000 HK$’'000

0230K 0-30 days 259,952 270,823
31£60Kk 31-60 days 52,812 132,132
61290k 61-90 days 8,761 27,920
912120 Kk 91-120 days 2,163 4,349
121£180K 121-180 days 1,618 5,748
181£365Kk 181-365 days 3,481 2,239
365K L £ Over 365 days 2,736 1,158
331,523 444,369

BUEZRREHINIOR-RFH
ERE - RZF-Z-F+ZA=1—
B BHRBBIORETREREZE
K & 5 1k 7 51,424,000/ T (=& —
—% :14,480,000/87T) - EEAETEH
TEERCENEFAE - ZERK
BESRRMEARIRENT

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are
generally not considered impaired. As at 31 December
2012, trade receivables of HK$1,424,000 (2011:
HK$4,480,000) were more than 90 days past due but
considered not to be impaired. These relate to a number of
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The past due ageing of these trade receivables is as

follows:

—g-—f = E

2012 2011

TERT THERT

HK$°000 HK$'000

91Z120% 91-120 days 154 1,794
121E180% 121-180 days 228 1,378
1812365% 181-365 days 619 1,120
365K H b Over 365 days 423 188
1,424 4,480

—E-—FER
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13 EREZIR
()

=g — 56 13

RZZE-—-f+-B=+—-H: ' EBHE
TEREBBEZEREZERRA
5,826,000/ w(=Z & — — F:
7,817,000 T) - ZERUIRREE T
EF(BREEBRNMENCEERE
EF)ERE o %5 MR A 8 5 IR 82
mE:

Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of
HK$5,826,000 (2011: HK$7,817,000) were impaired and had
been fully provided for.
number of customers, including customers in unexpected

These receivables relate to a

difficult economic situations. The past due ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

—g-—f —g——f

2012 2011

THERT FTET

HK$’000 HK$'000

0Z30% 0-30 days - 367
31E60% 31-60 days - 681
61290% 61-90 days 124 1,285
91Z120% 91-120 days 572 2,909
1212180% 121-180 days 123 1,288
1812365% 181-365 days 2,694 323
365% J b Over 365 days 2,313 964
5,826 7,817

RUEZRAREENRERBEED

Movements of provision for impairment of trade and bills

mE: receivable are as follows:
—E-C=f —E——F
2012 2011
THET THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
F 1) Beginning of the year 7,817 29,473
EHE% Exchange differences 56 1,377
(BERE),HERE (Write-back of)/provision for
TR impairment, net (1,356) 19,709
FRMEERIIRG Receivables written off during the
& U B X year as uncollectible (691) (9,826)
EBREEALE Transferred to discontinued
REER operations - (32,916)
FR End of the year 5,826 7,817
“E-CEFR XEEEERERLOA
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13 EWESERREE — 46f 13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated

(#&) (Continued)

CREERESRENESERBED The creation and release of provision for impaired
HEA-MRITHES c StABRBIRED receivables have been included in general and
SHENBFAERTWEZEINE DM administrative expenses. Amounts charged to the allowance
8 o account are written off when there is no expectation of

recovering additional cash.

AEENEKS ZRIREELTS The Group’s trade and bills receivable were denominated in
EHE the following currencies:
—E-—_—F —_E——F
2012 2011
TERT TExT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EYH United States Dollars 201,237 294,567
HEARKE Chinese Renminbi 115,063 136,221
BTt Hong Kong Dollars 15,085 13,231
HAth Others 138 350
331,523 444,369
RBEARBEANESRKRA Lt E The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
WIESHHATE AEBLES T the fair value of the receivables mentioned above. The
[IER SR o Group does not hold any collateral.

ZE-CEER AEEEERERLT
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14 ¥¢ BEANREREMEWRIKR 14 Deposits, prepayments and other
= receivables
&6 AKAFE
Consolidated Company
—¥-=f -%2-—-F ZB--F —T-—F
2012 2011 2012 2011
THERT FTAERT THER THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 Current
He KEBAK Rental, utility and other
Hitiz € deposits 6,062 22,983 = —
EERYKWTENRIE  Prepayments for operating
expenses 2,207 3,407 201 201
FENENRE Prepayments for
inventories 6,245 11,399 - —
A Y e 12 E B Value-added tax
recoverable 8,828 9,940 - —
EBREFHEE Claims receivable from
customers 2,174 6,590 - —
S Tax reserve certificate - 22,794 = =
H fth & U IR 3K Other receivables 40,064 9,716 30,829 326
65,580 86,829 31,030 527
3F BN HA Non-current
E IS Non-current deposits 24,703 — = —
ERTHEDNR Loans to an associate
(it =£ (a)) (Note(a)) 173,493 107,245 - —
263,776 194,074 31,030 527
REEEEFENLAFLEEE - N The carrying amounts of deposits approximate their fair
LHEANEERRAFMRBEND values. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
FTH AEBTEEEEMEKHR - reporting date is the fair value of the items mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral.
“E-CEFR XEEEERERLOA
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14 #£& -  AAREREMERIR

ENC )

14 Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables (Continued)

7N £ [ H9 EL At FE IR FREA T 51 B HE 5 The Group’s other receivables were denominated in the
&: following currencies:
—E-—_—F —_E——F
2012 2011
TERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ep United States Dollars 45,366 9,621
B AR Chinese Renminbi 23,296 21,659
BTt Hong Kong Dollars 10,619 39,507
Hits Others 2,550 1,236
81,831 72,023
MEE Note:
(@) EXRTH=2LH (@) Loans to an associate

R=ZZ——FNA  KEBEHEShine
GoldiI X ERHZE » Hlt» &
£ E [ Shine GoldiitHi—%&
REE R-ZB-—-F+=A=
+—H ' @Shine Gold#tH
& % 4 % 158,884,000 T
(=& — — #£:105,059,0008
) FREREBTER—FR
B8 TREES%:TE (2011
BF8%FTE)  R=ZT—=F+
—HB=+—H ' [Shine Goldiit
HHWERREWRA S BEE
173,493,000 T (= ——F :
107,245,000 JT)

In September 2011, the Group entered into a loan agreement
with Shine Gold, under which the Group granted a loan
facility to Shine Gold. As at 31 December 2012, total loans
made to Shine Gold amounted to HK$158,884,000 (2011:
HK$105,059,000). The loans will not be repayable within one
year and carry an interest at 8% per annum (2011: 8% per
annum). As at 31 December 2012, total loans and interest
receivables from Shine Gold amounted to HK$173,493,000
(2011: HK$107,245,000).
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15

148

EERRTER RAEHRE
B=@BAZRTER HER
REZEEY

15 Pledged bank deposits/Bank deposits with

initial terms of over three months/Cash and
cash equivalents

&6 PN

Consolidated Company
—F--Ff —FT--% =®B--fF -F-——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
TERT TET TR TET
HK$’000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$'000
2K HRITER Pledged bank deposits 1,244 1,839 - —

FEEHRBB=MMA Bank deposits with initial
ZRITER terms of over three

months 30,100 10,016 - —
ROTERFERES Cash at bank and on hand 72,821 24,438 202 856
RHERITER Short-term bank deposits 873,744 766,537 377,814 87,227
946,565 790,975 378,016 88,083
977,909 802,830 378,016 88,083

R-ZE——F+=-B=+—0  UHE
ARBEHENRITER5H1,244,000%
T(Z®——%:1,839,0000EFE R
RIT FARTEFETEZRESR
ENEAR R-E-——-H+-A=t
—B ZEGERNNETLIFENES
33% (=2 ——F  FRE2.4%) o

R-ZE-——5+-A=+—-H ' x&E
REEHREB =181 2RTFRME
PHERNERE32% (ZFB——F : £5|
E31%) o FHRTERMEFLIER
ENR14% (2 ——F: FH=E
1.7%) - RERITERNERH A=
AT °

—E-—FEH
2012 Annual Report

XEREZERERQA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Bank deposits, which were denominated in Chinese
Renminbi, of HK$1,244,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$1,839,000) were placed in a bank as collaterals against
certain trade finance facilities granted by a bank. The
weighted average interest rate on these deposits was 3.3%
per annum at 31 December 2012 (2011: 2.4% per annum).

As at 31 December 2012, the weighted average interest rate
of the Group’s bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months was 3.2% per annum (2011: 3.1% per annum). The
weighted average interest rate of short-term bank deposits
was 1.4% per annum (2011: 1.7% per annum). The short-
term bank deposits have maturities of 3 months or less at
inception.
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15 BEABTER EEHRE 15 Pledged bank deposits/Bank deposits with
B=BAZRTER BER initial terms of over three months/Cash and
REeEEEY @) cash equivalents (Continued)

CEFARTER REHREB =1
AZRITERUARBEERREEEY

Pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of
over three months and cash and cash equivalents were

UTHE¥EE: denominated in the following currencies:
& 0f NN

Consolidated Company
—E--f —E2--§ ZEB--f Z—E-—F
2012 2011 2012 2011
THET THER THERT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
E United States Dollars 464,476 460,624 269,905 62,913
HEARE Chinese Renminbi 451,117 317,008 107,999 24,794
BT Hong Kong Dollars 61,251 24,631 202 376
Hito Others 1,065 567 - —
977,909 802,830 378,016 88,083

AREUTEARBITENSHEAR
TEX REHREB=EAZET
BRURBRERREEEUEFRAF
BAENRT BREZSTFREAARE
BRANMEUARBECELPE AR
¥9 % o B K B TR A 48 A 69 50 EE
ERRBERRE -

RESAHNEAEFERRECEKR
BOEN BREUREB=EAZR
TERURRERBEEENNIRE
EHEE -

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with
initial terms of over three months and cash and cash
equivalents denominated in Chinese Renminbi were
deposited with banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
The conversion of Chinese Renminbi into foreign currencies
and the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the Mainland China Government.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
approximates the carrying values of the pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months and the cash and cash equivalents.
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16 ENEZKRFZREE — &4f 16 Trade and bills payable — Consolidated

—g-=f 2%
2012 2011
FER FER
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE 1+ B 5 iR Trade payables
— F¥E=5 — to third parties 196,810 256,806
— FEE A (KH5E36(d)) — to related parties (Note36(d)) 64,029 66,293
EREE Bills payable 10,997 30,133
271,836 353,232
REZAHGTENENESZRARE The ageing of the trade and bills payable based on invoice
BREgRWT : date is as follows:
—E-C-F —E-—-F
2012 2011
THET FTART
HK$’000 HK$’000
0230K 0-30 days 111,494 158,648
31260k 31-60 days 87,504 106,443
61£90K 61-90 days 46,836 56,925
91120k 91-120 days 21,369 24,036
121£180K 121-180 days 1,890 4,448
181&2365Kk 181-365 days 1,387 2,202
365K M £ Over 365 days 1,356 530
271,836 353,232
AEENEREZREAREBUATS The Group’s trade and bills payable were denominated in the
E¥otE: following currencies:
—E-C=f —E——F
2012 2011
THER THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
EY United States Dollars 183,704 216,114
BT Hong Kong Dollars 52,546 97,447
B AR Chinese Renminbi 35,583 39,637
HAth Others 3 34
271,836 353,232

TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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17 BRTIR K E At B A iR &K

17 Accruals and other payables

&0f PIN/N|
Consolidated Company
—®8--f -E-—-f =—B--f —B—-%
2012 2011 2012 2011
FTERT TART TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EERFRAEE IR Accrual for employment
benefit costs 126,364 131,693 7,260 10,615
B EER Value added tax payable 9,030 11,567 - —
BEWEFZE Deposits received from
customers 16,115 17,238 - —
Hih& B ETIRF Accrual for other operating
expenses 44,540 51,072 198 3,777
EstmB#ERE - ESR Accrued marketing,
EERX advertising and promotion
expenses 766 1,549 - —
BEYWE  HEKRME Payable for purchases of
9 FE 13 iR 5X property, plant and
equipment 37,202 4,905 - —
B EHEHRE L Deposit received for
Hize leasehold land held for
sale 36,931 6,170 — —
W EEFi BN E] FE{S X Consideration payable for
acquisition of subsidiaries - 30,359 - —
H fth P& {3 IR 3R Other payables 10,302 8,265 3 81
281,250 262,818 7,461 14,473
“E-CEFR AKEKEEERERLOA
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18

152

BE — &6 18 Borrowings — Consolidated
—E-—_F —E——F
2012 2011
TERT FTHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BN EA Current
ERKBENRITER Trust receipts import bank loans 12,396 4,659
12,396 4,659
AEBRELEEER —EREEZE - H All of the Group’s borrowings were repayable within one
RITENEEYTFEA ESHES year. The carrying amounts of the short-term borrowings
WIREEEEQNFEERS - approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
NR-EBE——F+=-A=+—H' ' 3l As at 31 December 2012, trust receipts import bank loans of
EBEORIITERN12,396,0008 T (=% HK$12,396,000 (2011: HK$4,659,000) were secured by a
——% 14,659,000 T) HAATEM corporate guarantee given by the Company.
MEEERTUER -
REFEEWREEUTIE A : The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were

denominated in the following currencies:

—f-—=f —E--F
2012 2011
TExT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
E United States Dollars 12,396 4,659
12,396 4,659
TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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18 & — &6twm

R-ZE-—f+-A=+—-H 58
£ & £12,396,0008 T (=T — —
F 14,659,000 7T) » IR FE SRt
B REEEMMETEHE RMEM

18 Borrowings — Consolidated (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s borrowings of
HK$12,396,000 (2011: HK$4,659,000) were on floating rates.
The weighted average interest rates (per annum) at the
balance sheet date were as follows:

T
—g-=% o

2012 2011

ERBBEEORTER Trust receipts import bank loan 1.9% 2.0%

R=ZZE——HF+=-F=+—H ' X&H

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has the following

WABHEETEENT: undrawn banking facilities:
—E-_—F —_E——F
2012 2011
THERT THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR R = Floating rates
— R—FREH — expiring within one year 261,493 226,796

R-FRIBNEERFERE A
R-ZB-_FZEBHEHNER -

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
subject to review at various dates during 2012.

ZE-CEER AKEEEERERLT
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SHEBEHRRMT Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 EERSBH — &6 19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated
EEMSHREEREEETENHH Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
HEEHNBHEAERSERAE there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
BEERELEMEHEERE B assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
AEREER  F A EEEKE o REF income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction. The net
BT amounts are as follows:

—E-_F —E——F
2012 2011
FTERx THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFBEEE: Deferred tax assets:
— 12 B &K E — Deferred tax assets to be
EERBEEE recovered after more than
12 months 8,058 4,993
— 12 AR E — Deferred tax assets to be
ELEHRBEE recovered within 12 months 2,769 7,201
10,827 12,194
EEFEEE: Deferred tax liabilities:
— REREEEN — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
EEBEEE after more than 12 months (6,211) (10,038)
— 12BRREEW — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
ELRBEE within 12 months (4,728) (5,832)
(10,939) (15,870)
ELERBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
— RE — net (112) (3,676)
EEFEHIEESEFHNT: The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:
—E—_F —E——F
2012 2011
FERx THET
HK$’000 HK$°000
F4) Beginning of the year (3,676) 3,916
EXER Exchange differences — 65
RABRER Recognised in the income statement
(M EE27) (Note 27) 3,564 (7,657)
FR End of the year (112) (3,676)

TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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19 BEFMBH — &6tw@ 19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated
(Continued)
REHBEEREBEE (RRE— The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
BEmiEBEANERKENELS N taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the
D same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
ELEHREEE: Deferred tax liabilities:
R
BAHENB
Withholding
BRBHEE KREHAEBH tax on
Tax Unrealised undistributed et
Depreciation loss earnings Total
FTET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-Z2-——§ At 1 January 2011
—A—8 (4,274) — (3,229) (7,503)
REERBER Recognised in the income
statement 1,711 (11,125) 640 (8,774)

RIE——F At 31 December 2011

+=B=+—H (2,563) (11,125) (2,589) (16,277)
REERBER Recognised in the income
statement 330 5,370 (788) 4,912
R-ZE-—F At 31 December 2012
+=B=+—-H (2,233) (5,755) (3,377) (11,365)

ZE-CEER AKEEEERERLT
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19 EERSH — 66w 19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated
(Continued)
ELEBBEE: Deferred tax assets:
AER A
BIEEE  Unrealised Hit 4t
Tax losses profit Others Total
TET TET TET TAERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE——F At 1 January 2011
—HA—H 4,896 4,893 1,630 11,419
RABRER Recognised in the income
statement (3,778) 2,269 2,626 1,117
ERER Exchange differences 65 — — 65
R-—ZE——F At 31 December 2011
+=B=+—H 1,183 7,162 4,256 12,601
REERER Recognised in the income
statement 132 (5,474) 3,994 (1,348)
R-ZE—ZF At 31 December 2012
+ZA=+-—H 1,315 1,688 8,250 11,253

fisf AT 3B R SR PE R B R A 2 B HEE R
BAG ARNEEEEERIAELT
FEHEE -R-ZE——F+-A=+
—B  NEE AT E1E542,884,000
BT (ZF——% 427,052,000/ 7T)
BAULERERRERHBLANE
i fiT 15 B & E123,616,00058 T (=&
——%:95,794,000/8 7t ) ° [& KR
Bt 7% B 18 48 58147,694,0008 T (= &
— — % :127,958,0007% t) 7] LA & [R
H et W R 5B % & 849,411,000
B (ZF——% 49,014,000 ) *
84,573,000 (= T — — &
83,893,0007% 7t) > 89,745,000/& T
(Z & — — #£:89,167,000% )
59,967,000 (= T — — #&:
65,606,0007% 7t) % 111,494,000 T
(ZE-——-F B)BHIR=F—=
E-ZE-NFE -ZFT-FHF ZF-—
ANERZZE—LFEH o

—E--EFH AREEERERAT
156 .

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at
31 December 2012, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$123,616,000 (2011:
HK$95,794,000) in respect of losses amounting to
HK$542,884,000 (2011: HK$427,052,000) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. Total unrecognised
tax losses of HK$147,694,000 (2011: HK$127,958,000) can
be carried forward indefinitely; while cumulative tax losses of
HK$49,411,000 (2011: HK$49,014,000), HK$84,573,000
(2011: HK$83,893,000), HK$89,745,000 (2011:
HK$89,167,000), HK$59,967,000 (2011: HK$65,606,000) and
HK$111,494,000 (2011: Nil) will expire in 2013, 2014, 2015,
2016 and 2017 respectively.
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19 EEZEFRBH — 66w

HRETHBLAAEEERRAR S
REZHBRAAZHAEERFIENR
RE HUERZERANEMS 2B
BRIEL S5 A1E1,605000%F T
(ZF——4%:2,339,0008 ) - K=
E—_H+-A=1+—H HRLER
F & # 532,105,000 T(=ZF — —
% 146,781,000 7T) °

19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated

(Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$1,605,000 (2011:
HK$2,339,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries, as it is management’s intention to
reinvest such amounts in the foreseeable future. Unremitted
earnings totalled HK$32,105,000 at 31 December 2012
(2011: HK$46,781,000).

20 A 20 Share capital
R+=A=+—AH
As at 31 December
—E-CF —E——F
2012 2011
FERT TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
EE Authorised
3,000,000,0000% & & & 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares
BREMBEIER of HK$0.1 each 300,000 300,000
EEREE
Number of

ordinary shares

TR FET
'000 HK$'000
ERITREE Issued and fully paid up
RZE——FR At 31 December
“E-——_H#4+ZH=+—H 2011 and 2012 1,268,400 126,840

ZE-CEER AKEEEERERLT
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20 KA

158

BRE

ARBRANMEBRESENT

(i)

—E-—FER
2012 Annual Report

HRETESR—Z2EBAALE
BER%  HAATEAKEREE
RABERABRE H=-ZZ
RNEADARBERABRER
OB R O S OE OB W
44,400,000 B E > TR E
R1148TE2.28 BT ENE
BRABAATIRM - BRIBEFETH
HEX LEBRER-ZTTX
EE_EE\E=EREE I
RZE-—A"EHRATHEH - K
EETELESEENEEU
BeBESMATHEERE - 8
BERLHERABRETS
ADRARUBREBINBRE -

FBIRHEST 2

EARHRM—EREI0F 2=
E-R"ENREBNBREST
B UBRERTAMNES
BE BB -EF  #E®-
REA EBARAEEERSR
AERE o THEEHESERE
HRAMER()BREE ; (i) BB
FERBMAERAT (THR AT
RIELAH(BEAEER) BHEHY
BImKMATNERKTE  K(iii)
BEBHIAREERZAHAE
BAEEARENARKTENR
BREHIRTENRSE - A58
VTEREIEREENEETUARS
BOSATEBRE-

XEEEERERAT
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20 Share capital (continued)
Share options

The Company operates two share option schemes as
described below:

(i) Pre-IPO share option scheme

Pre-IPO share options were granted by the Company
to certain directors and a consultant for their services
to the Group. In 2006, the Company granted
44,400,000 options under the Pre-IPO share option
scheme to subscribe for shares in the Company at
prices ranging from HK$1.14 to HK$2.28 per share.
These options vested according to a pre-determined
schedule over three years from 2006 to 2008 and will
expire on 10 May 2016. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle these
options in cash. No additional options can be granted
under the Pre-IPO share option scheme.

(i)  Share option scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme,
which will remain in force for 10 years up to August
2016. Share options may be granted to any director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group. The
exercise price is determined by the Board and shall
not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of
a share; (ii) the closing price of one share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of offer, which shall be a
business day; and (iii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase
or settle these options in cash.



S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 MA@ 20 Share capital (Continued)

BRE®E

Share options (Continued)

RITE B RERE X AEE O MEFI

The number of share options outstanding and their related

THRENT: weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
—_E—_—F —_E——F
2012 2011
FRYH BRFY
TEE TREE
Average Average
exercise exercise
price per BER®E price per B
share  Options share Options
B T4 BT T4
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000
R—A—-HR At 1 January and
+=ZA=+—H 31 December 1.466 21,000 1.466 21,000

BE_Z——5K-Z-"F+Zh=
T—HLEFE  RITEBREHERME
AOMELHTEELELS - BE
—E-—FR=F--FtZA=t-
ALEEE MEBRETFIR-

There is no movement in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average exercise
prices during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012.
All the share options are exercisable as at years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012.

RERRTEERENZ BB RIT Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the

FENT: following expiry dates and exercise prices:
B R
Share options
BRITEE

Exercise price —E-C-fF —E——F
2|85 B Expiry date per share 2012 2011
BT T4 T 47
HK$ ’000 000
—E-RFHATH 10 May 2016 1.140 9,000 9,000
—E-X~"ERABTH 10 May 2016 1.596 10,000 10,000
—E-XR"ERATH 10 May 2016 2.280 2,000 2,000
21,000 21,000

RBE-ZE——-F+ZHA=1+—HL#F
3 R A R E R 0 BR 1E ] 88 IR
BERA(CZE——F F)-

No share option cost was charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011: Nil).

ZE-ZEER  AREEERBERAF
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21 #fE 21 Reserves
(a) &bt (a) Consolidated
BB

NHRERE EERE
Share- (i3] NEBE
R fE based Statutory Foreign Hftififs RKREBEA
Share payment reserves currency Other Retained @t
premium reserve (Note) translation reserves earnings Total
TET TRT TERT TERT TRT TET TET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=2--%-A-AH At 1 January 2011 666,939 9,282 9,043 89,084 200,481 840,755 1,815,584
ERBEER Currency translation differences
— R&@E — Group - — — 20,142 — — 20,142
— BELF — Associates — — — 1,252 - — 1,252
REGEELZZHH Changes in ownership interests

BERTHEAREGRE in subsidiaries without

% 1% 8 (5 35) change of control (Note 35) — — — —  (15,614) — (15,614)
ERRE Dividend paid

— —2-EEkH — 2010 final - - - - — (38052  (38,052)

—ZE——-Fd4H — 2011 interim — — — — —  (63,420)  (63,420)
AAAREREA Profit attributable to equity

et & A holders of the Company — — — — — 230,196 230,196
EREEERR Transfer to statutory reserves — — 1,067 — — (1,067) —
R=ZB-——%#+-A=1+—-H At 31 December 2011 666,939 9,282 10,110 110,478 184,867 968,412 1,950,088
EWBEER Currency translation differences

— X£E — Group = = — 4,619 — = 4,619

— BELQF — Associates — — — 773 - — 773
EfRE Dividend paid

— ZE--Fx8 — 2011 final — — — — —  (38,052)  (38,052)

. ] — 2012 interim - - - - — (38052  (38,052)
KRAAREEEA Profit attributable to equity

EEER holders of the Company — — — — — 150,185 150,185
ERELERE Transfer to statutory reserves — - 284 - - (284) -
R=ZFB--F+-A=1+—-H At 31 December 2012 666,939 9,282 10,394 115,870 184,867 1,042,209 2,029,561
5 Representing:
BE-T-—FERHKE  Proposed 2012 final dividend 50,736
it Others 991,473

1,042,209
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21 fEfEum 21 Reserves (Continued)
(a) &bt (a) Consolidated (Continued)
MY &E Note:
REFERENRG > RATRF As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
BAERIREENHBEARAR Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland
HEESEMEENL R EEIKE China are required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax
BEIFEFEBNBRBZBANNDS profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses) to the general
BA-REERCERRES - — reserve and the enterprise expansion fund, at rates
REETAEREBEFESER determined by their respective boards of directors. The
BTAR MEERRESABE general reserve can be utilised to offset prior year losses or
hR¥EK REBE-ZT-——F+= be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the
BR=+t—HLFE " 284,000/ 1t enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the
(ZZ2——4%:1,067,0008 ) E % development of business operations. During the year ended
BE-REERLERERES - 31 December 2012, HK$284,000 (2011: HK$1,067,000) was
appropriated to the general reserve and the enterprise
expansion fund.
(b) AAH (b) Company
R B
DEA 1]
B %E  Share-based HERS REBEF
Share payment Contributed Retained 5
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
TiEn T TiEn TiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
W=B--%-5-H At 1 January 2011 666,939 9,282 528,331 67188 1,271,740
RARREREAREER Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company — — — 147256 147,256
ENRE Dividend paid
— Z2-BE%H — 2010 final — — — (38052  (38,052)
—ZB——ER — 2011 interim - - — (63420)  (63,420)
R=Z2--%+-B=f+-H8 At 31 December 2011 666,939 9,282 528,331 112972 1,317,524
RARREREA Profit attributable to equity holders
JE 4 & A of the Company — — — 65058 65,058
ERRE Dividend paid
— ZE-——FXY — 2011 final - - — (38052  (38,052)
—ZB-ZE4H — 2012 interim - - — (38052  (38,052)
R-B-“#+-A=t+-H At 31 December 2012 666,939 9,282 528,331 101,926 1,306,478
& Representing:
BE_Z-"EREKRE Proposed 2012 final dividend 50,736
Hit Others 51,190
101,926
“E-CEFR XAXEEEERERLOA
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22 Hilr A 22 Other income

—E-—_F —E——F
2012 2011
FERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ZEXTEWRA (M) Retail support income (Note) 26,450 —
B2l A Rental income 1,098 385
HERERA Royalty income 56 240
Hth Others 1,217 1,601
28,821 2,226

Fff 5% : Note:

BE-_Z-—-"F+-A=+-HLEE R
#EEUmbro Hong Kong Limited R=Z—
—FEMNA-t+-—BEINGHZE AEER
RBEEXERA#26,450,0005 T ©

23 Hft(F#H) WE — FHE

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recognised
retail support income of approximately HK$26,450,000 pursuant to
the agreement signed with Umbro Hong Kong Limited dated 21
April 2011.

23 Other (losses)/gains — net

—E-C-f —E2——F
2012 2011
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEWE  HERRMBH  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
EEFE equipment, net (706) (36)
EX (BB WaFE Net exchange (losses)/gains (586) 9,524
Hity Others - 391
(1,292) 9,879
“E-CEFR XEEEERERLOA
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24

BUHEEIHRAX

FAXBREEERS  HERDHAA
UR—BRTREAR 20T

24 Expenses by nature

Expenses included

distribution costs and general

in cost of sales,
and administrative

expenses are analysed as follows:

selling and

—E-C-f —E——F
2012 2011
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
CEANEMBEREER  Raw materials and consumables used 1,253,277 1,477,049
BE SN M Purchases of finished goods 286,236 345,445
MIRSEEHR Processing and subcontracting charges 93,234 139,402
EERERX Manufacturing overheads 37,840 39,187
BAX Sample expenses 14,306 24,181
HRmREHD Changes in inventories of finished goods
FEEHE and work in progress 93,342 (126,719)
M- WERRE Depreciation of property, plant and
e equipment 92,084 90,676
M- ERRERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 2,837 2,746
= b 5 A R S Amortisation of land use rights 565 1,020
BREEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 1,408 4,314
BEXEERE Impairment of intangible assets - 112,000
AL ESH Impairment of available-for-sale financial
EEME assets - 500
1 & 18 %I B8 % (Fft 5£25) Employment benefit expense (Note 25) 752,859 758,766
BEE RARRKBHAX Freight, delivery and insurance expenses 60,712 81,575
HERHEY Royalties expense 148 145
HERS Sales commission 99 1,218
mGEE - B&ER Marketing, advertising and promotion
EEHRX expenses 6,128 12,668
EBAPAZERMER LR  Operating lease rental in respect of office
BFREpgEe equipment and land and buildings
— EEREENR — minimum lease payments 55,751 61,655
— B ARHEE — contingent rent 10,203 9,915
%S & Auditor’s remuneration 4,177 3,498
JE IR 7R (BB R1) /R B (Write-back of)/impairment
— FE of receivables, net
— EWESERAREE — trade and bills receivable (1,335) 6,040
— & BEARKkEAMm — deposits, prepayments and other
/e receivables 1,034 1,597
FERE — T8 Provision for inventories, net 47,307 12,782
Hth B X Other expenses 168,019 155,331
HERAN  HERDH Total cost of sales, selling and distribution
B LR — R AT costs and general and administrative
B X B expenses 2,980,231 3,214,991

—E-—FER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 Employment benefit expense

—E-CF —E-——F
2012 2011
FHExT FH& T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ITE -HFe fHE Wages, salaries, commission,
ER R AL allowances and bonus 694,424 701,572
R TE R Retirement benefit
— REMAKETE — defined contribution schemes 37,035 39,037
B & H AR = Welfare and other benefits 21,400 18,157
752,859 758,766
(@) BEKBIREK — REMKRG (a) Retirement benefit costs - defined

2012 Annual Report

8

rEEREHEBREESME
HABETE ((RESED
BIHBIZEAEENRAEMR
HEtE - REBBESE KA
B(EF)REEEARERGIM
DEENEFESEHLTEERA
5%fEABAMN - B=ZF—=
FRAA-H®R EXREESRE
MWE R HERLERAB1,2508 T
mEMNERBEEER - A&
BRURNIBERERKER
MEERE -

ZE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer)
and its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The
monthly contributions of each of the employer and the
employee are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 since 1
June 2012 and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
The Group has no further obligations for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.
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25 EERABEI@®

(a)

BRABRARAR — REMKGT
Bl (@)

REFEAAENREEREH > K
SEERAHYREAEETEID
BXERAKETEELER -
AEEREEESAEBRAKA
(BEIE ¥Fe ZHREA)
He8%mt B MAKEEE
8 B A B95% = 28%1E H i
o MBRERN  REBBEK
ERREBAERTRNESR -
BXREMERSTEEERENR
EIXNEIHERS o

AEBAERNMEZMBLATS
EREESMEMRE - FEH
ERAEE)IREEESARE
EEBEBRABEIE %&£
B RTE AL #916% [ 5t 3
H o ARERGUFIIBEAER
REBRNNEE -

BR EALET RO  REE L
HiRARKBRNNERERE -

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(a)

Retirement benefit costs - defined
contribution plans (Continued)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China,
retirement schemes for certain of its employees in
Mainland China.
monthly contributions to
the
(comprising wages, salaries, allowances and bonus),

the Group contributes to state-sponsored

The Group’s employees make
the schemes at
approximately 8% of relevant income
while the Group contributes 5% to 28% of such
income and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the
retirement

contributions. The state-sponsored

schemes are responsible for the entire post-
retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired

employees.

The Group participates in a retirement scheme for
qualified employees of its subsidiary in Vietnam.
Each of the Group (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 16% of
the employees’ relevant income (comprising wages,
salaries, allowances and bonus). The Group has no
further benefits

obligations for post-retirement

beyond the contributions.

The Group has no material obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond contributions to the
above schemes.

ZE-ZEER  AREEERBERAF
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25 EERABEL@®

(b)

166

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

EEMe (b) Directors’ emoluments
BE-Z-—+-H=+-—H The remuneration of each director of the Company
LEFE ARABDZESEHHE W for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out
T below:
N | FEBREN
[EZ3 R 8 &
Employer’s Share-based
WERL EE2E  contribution compensation
e #% Discretionary Housing to retirement  in respect of @
EEng Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes share options Total
TET TET THET THERT THERT THET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000  HK$’000
HITEE Executive directors
ZER Li Kwok Tung, Roy - 3,950 1,600 - 14 - 5,564
REF (M) Lai Ching Ping (Note) - 3,339 1,600 - 14 - 4,953
wE Cheung Chi - 2,152 1,500 - 14 - 3,666
ZE# Lee Kwok Leung - 1,729 1,300 - 14 - 3,043
BUHH{TEZE Independent non-
executive directors
BRE Ma Ka Chun 100 - - - - - 100
Rt & Chan Kwong Fai 100 - - - - - 100
B2 Kwan Kai Cheong 150 - - - - - 150
BERX Wun Kwang 100 - - - - - 100
450 11,170 6,000 - 56 - 17,676
“E-CEFR XEEEERERLOA
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25 EERABEL@®

(b)

EEME @

Bz-_2-——-%+-A=t—-H

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each director of the Company

LEFE RARARAZESHHEW for the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out
T below:
BHREE BRERE
EXHR HROME
Employer’s Share-based
B EE%#  contribution compensation
ne ¢ Discretionary Housing to retirement  in respect of @it
ESfy Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes share options Total
FHET TR THET THET THET FHET FHET
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
HITEE Executive directors
ZER Li Kwok Tung Roy — 3,822 2,500 — 12 — 6,334
REF (M) Lai Ching Ping (Note) — 3,234 2,500 — 12 — 5,746
®E Cheung Chi — 2,067 2,300 — 12 — 4,379
ZEB Lee Kwok Leung — 1,680 1,900 - 12 — 3,592
BUH#H{TEE Independent non-
executive directors
BRE Ma Ka Chun 100 - — - - — 100
Rt Chan Kwong Fai 100 — — — — — 100
BRE Kwan Kai Cheong 150 — — — — — 150
BEX Wun Kwang 100 — — — — — 100
450 10,803 9,200 — 48 — 20,501

REE-E-—F+-A=+-
ALEE  BRESHEEAH
$(CB——F 8

i)

pr

REFYRADBTRAR

No directors waived any emoluments during the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

Note:

Lai Ching Ping is the chief executive officer of the Company.

—2-—gEH
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25 EERABEL@®

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(c) EREEHAL (c) Five highest paid individuals
BE-Z-—H+-H=+-H The five individuals whose emoluments were the
LtEEAEEREGSHFALTE highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
FEONE(CZE-——F:0R)E 2012 include four (2011: four) directors whose
B oRENHMECER LR S emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
e FRENEBRFEH-—F above. The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining
(ZE——F : —B)ALHEHE one individual (2011: one individual) during the year are
mE: as follows:

—F-=F —F-——-F
2012 2011
THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
K% - EEZMEKR  Basic salaries, housing allowances
H )2 8h and other allowances 1,248 1,210
B 15 18 4L Discretionary bonuses 2,207 4,338
BIREF Retirement benefit
— REMAEE — defined contribution schemes 14 12
3,469 5,560
FWNFUTEHE : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—E-C-f —E——F
2012 2011
FNEE (B T) Emolument bands (in HK Dollars)
3,000,008 T & HK$3,000,001 —
3,500,000 7T HK$3,500,000 1 —
5,500,001 T 2 HK$5,500,001 —
6,000,000 T HK$6,000,000 - 1

(d #HE=Z=-—=-F+=B=+-8H (d) During the year ended 31 December 2012, no
HEE AR FTELAHMEF emoluments were paid by the Company to any of the
FRNEEFEERSHFAL £ directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
BiIMASBENARERRNR inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
BB EECE——F: compensation for loss of office (2011: Nil).

) o
“E-CEFR XEEEERERLOA
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26

27

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wE WA R KA 26 Finance income and costs
=F-=F —F--F
2012 2011
TER FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
F 2 U A Interest income from
— RITEXK — Bank deposits 13,120 10,555
— R ES — Convertible bonds
(Bt 5£36(c)) (Note 36(c)) 1,564 590
— BERF—ZXBENT — Loans to an associate
(Bf 5£36(c)) (Note 36(c)) 12,424 2,185
— EFIER — Customers for extended
= EFH credit terms 36 79
MM v oo 27144 13,409
7t & A Finance costs
=omeel = Eeitbemewies (2330 . (1,523)
MEWANFE Net finance income 24,814 11,886
FieBimx 27 Income tax expense

ERANEHOCREBERNEEGHTEERESR
i AR B E16.5% (Z 8 — — F:
16.5%) st IR B 18

ERBEABEAIRELECHBRAR
BEDARAFERAR2%HEHM
FEABEEERSEHR(ZE-—F:
25%) - RBERABE  ZSEFEK
BRIANEBELERFHEED
XNMBAAKRMELR  ATER
“ER)\FEF O EMEFURHRA
NEERER  MER=FURFR

B OMNE R R R B AR A B
BERAFEMTERVBRNELAR
BEEHERR2RTERB RS

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for
the year.

Subsidiaries and associates established and operated in
Mainland China are subject to Mainland China Enterprise
Income Tax at rate of 25% for the year (2011: 25%). In
accordance with the applicable tax regulations, subsidiaries
and associates established in Mainland China as wholly
owned foreign enterprises or sino-foreign joint ventures are
entitled to full exemption from Enterprise Income Tax for the
first two years and a 50% reduction in Enterprise Income
Tax for the next three years, commencing no later than
2008.

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

ZE-ZEER AREEERBERAF
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27 FiBHMX@ 27 Income tax expense (Continued)
BEfEERINRNAEHAXIE: The amounts of income tax expense charged to the

consolidated income statement represent:

—g-=% o
2012 2011
FTEx FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B ER P8 %1 Current income tax
ERFEH Hong Kong profits tax 41,876 13,635
B R B 4R 3 Mainland China enterprise
st income tax 4,949 4,983
BIONETS B Overseas income tax - 604
RBEFEE(BEEME)  (Over)under provision
BETE in prior years (908) 2,040
45,917 21,262
i %€ BT 8 % (KT 319) Deferred income tax (note 19) (3,564) 8,267
42,353 29,529

TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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27

Fresimzm@m 27. Income tax expense (Continued)
7 5 B FR AT 15 B4 A& F o B 18 B2 4 A The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
BERARGHEREANMETIR = from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

GHNERESBENERMT:

consolidated entities as follows:

weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

—B-——F —E——F
2012 2011
TR TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEEEGEE ARER, Profit before income tax excluding
(BR)WKRFFIEHAER  share of profits/(losses) of associates 149,370 8,934
HORE 39 7k i 38 A B = Weighted average applicable domestic
tax rates 9.7% 17.0%
LBRARBREE,/ Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
B 2% Al B9 7K i B = applicable to profits in the respective
STEMEE places/countries 14,457 1,518
RESZE: Tax effects of:
— BARBWA — Income not subject to tax (4,515) (3,252)
— FAHIHRANEX — Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 3,237 25,812
— RERE2EE — Effect of tax concession (2,452) (8,422)
— VEBIELFESHMN — Tax losses for which no deferred
HEEE income tax was recognised 27,822 15,244
— AEREEER — Temporary differences not
recognised 6,548 —
— BABEABRBIEEE — Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (3,359) (4,179)
— MEBARREE AR — Withholding tax on undistributed
RAEBEFFENH earnings of subsidiaries and
associates 788 (30)
— RBAEFEE(BEEEHE) — (Over)lunder provision in prior years
BETE (908) 2,040
— Hfts — Others 735 798
BBRAX Tax charge 42,353 29,529
MEFLEARMMELEHETERARN The change in weighted average applicable domestic tax
TEEBATWMERTESZ B rates is mainly caused by a change in mix of profits earned

B-2ERERNETEAHRHM

tax.

—E-—FER
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28 ADNFIREZEAEMLEF 28 Profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company
AAa R EFEEAEMNL A The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
65,058,000/ (= & — — &F: dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
147,256,000 Jt) 5 A & A 8 B 7 3 extent of HK$65,058,000 (2011: HK$147,256,000).
KA °
29 SRER 29 Earnings per share
(@ EX (a) Basic
BREAXRBRGREARRDERE The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
EEAEESZAEBANY on the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
150,185,000 T (= E——F : of the Company of approximately HK$150,185,000
230,196,000 T) R £ R E & (2011: HK$230,196,000) and on the weighted average
TEBRERMNETLTEHALY number of approximately 1,268,400,000 (2011:
1,268,400,000f% (ZZ——%F : 1,268,400,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
1,268,400,000%) 5t & ° year.
—g2-=% —2-——F
2012 2011
AARREZBEAE Profit attributable to equity holders
HaEA(FET) of the Company (HK$’000)
— BEREER — Continuing operations 141,424 43,851
— BARIEEZEEFKE — Discontinued operations 8,761 186,345
150,185 230,196
ERTEBERNME Weighted average number of ordinary
T (TR) shares in issue ('000) 1,268,400 1,268,400
SREAREF (BML) Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
— BEREEK — Continuing operations 111 3.4
— BRIEEEEK — Discontinued operations 0.7 14.7
11.8 181

TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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29 BRERN @

(b)

]

BREFRFNDBRAZLREA
BEBBEYENTERMAE
MEFHERTEBRBE
o R B RES 3 (M E20)
AERTHROAE-EEEHE
FENEER - AREARBRT
EERREFMNIABENESRE
BEFHFEUEETERQFE
(DADARDREERENF
HmERE) WENRGHE
L et B AR BB BB ERAT
ERREMBRTHRGAEFHL
L -

HRBE-ZE——FK=-ZE—=
E+ZA=+-HLEEERALD
AREBREMEEN KRBT
BEZBERAREBIZE &
HE-Z——ER-FT—-F+
“BAE=+-BEEENSREE
BFESRERBRAER -

29 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Shares issuable under the
share option schemes (Note 20) are the only dilutive
potential ordinary shares. A calculation is made in
order to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market price of the Company’s shares in the
relevant periods) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share

options.

The diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012 are the same as the basic
earnings per share as the potential ordinary shares
arising from the share options granted by the
Company outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012 are anti-dilutive.
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30 RE 30 Dividends
—E-—_F —_E——F
2012 2011
TERT THET
HK$°000 HK$’000
ENFHRESR Interim dividend paid of HK3.0 cents
L ERR3.078 (2011: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary
(ZZ——F :5.0/81L) share 38,052 63,420
EERHBRESR Proposed final dividend of HK4.0 cents
8 IR4.058 Al (2011: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary
(ZZ——F:3.0%4) share 50,736 38,052
88,788 101,472
R-ZE—=F=ZA+HNAETHEZ At a meeting held on 14 March 2013, the Board proposed a
P EEe2E R ARERESR40 final dividend of HK4.0 cents (2011: HK3.0 cents). The
BAN(ZE——F 3081  22x proposed dividends have not been reflected as a dividend
BEEARKEHHBEREARLSE payable in these consolidated financial statements, but will
ABRE  HEEeERMAEEE-_S—= be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the
F+-_A=+—BIEEENREBRR year ending 31 December 2013.
Mo
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31

ReRERMWETE 31 Notes to cash flow statement
(@) EEMBREHIR (a) Reconciliation of cash generated from
operations
—E-C-f —E——F
2012 2011
FTET FTET
HK$’000 HK$’000

R P 15 B AR F Profit before income tax 162,380 169,602
BTHSERE: Adjustments for:
— BREEHH — Amortisation of intangible assets 1,408 4,314
— T FEAE#EE — Amortisation of land use rights 565 1,020
— HES#EEMNWE — Gain on disposal of distribution right - (214,500)
— HEYE - #EE — Loss on disposal of property, plant

RENEE and equipment 599 755
— ME KRR — Depreciation of property, plant and

REME equipment 92,091 95,029
— M HBR — Impairment of property, plant and

RERE equipment 3,171 12,233
— BREERE — Impairment of intangible assets = 126,851
— At ESH — Impairment of available-for-sale

EERE financial assets - 500
— ZERE — F% — Impairment of inventories, net 47,307 11,696
— EWIRFR (B E),/ — (Write-back)/impairment of

WE — T receivables, net (2,666) 21,205
— BEW AN — FEE — Finance income — net (24,881) (11,249)
— EhEE AT — Share of profits/(losses) of

wmAL(E8) associates (4,249) 349
— ERWE/ — Exchange gains/(losses), net

(BB])— #E 1,115 (15,018)
EEESEE: Changes in working capital:
— FE — Inventories 155,342 (148,446)
— EWEZRFAZE — Trade and bills receivable

ES 119,336 112,014
— %% BRRFE KR — Deposits, prepayments and other

H fth F& U 1R X receivables 28,007 (23,318)
— EREZiIKRAXKR — Trade and bills payable

£ (82,621) 18,777
— EstiRA K EME — Accruals and other payables

7 1R K (5,166) 44,030
BEMSREE Cash generated from operations 491,738 205,844

—2-—gEH
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31 eRERM T & 31 Notes to cash flow statement (continued)
(b) RBEERERT HEWE - # (b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of
BERZEMEREEE: property, plant and equipment comprise:
—g-=f% —g--%
2012 2011
THER FTET
HK$°000 HK$’000

HEWE  #EE  Disposal of property, plant and

= equipment:
R E Net book amount 1,816 1,045
HEME  #2K  Loss on disposal of property, plant and

REEBR equipment (599) (755)

HEME #EER  Proceeds from disposal of property,

REREBRE plant and equipment 1,217 290
(c) #Z=Z2——F+=B=+—H (c) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the payment
LHEE > RNBREFTHEIME to Umbro International Limited (“UIL’) for the
# M [ Umbro International acquisition of additional interests in Team & Sports
Limited (TUILD) X & Limited of HK$31,200,000 has been net-off with the
31,200,000 T B L KRR E proceeds from the disposal of distribution rights from
ULKWEHEDSHERMSBS RE UIL of HK$214,500,000.

214,500,000 Tt °
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32 FFHEZHRBEERER
ILEEXR®E — a6

(a)

(b)

H &L i A

R-ZZE——F+=ZA=t+H &
SEENE-BE=ZAHURE
A B #29,687,0007T (1 E R
36,931,000 jt) i & A B A B
METLHFERBITLEER
FoRZE-—-Ft+-A=+-
B W% #36,931,0005 Tt (=
T ——4£:6,170,000% T ) A%
0 FH A EET IR R R B A FE AT iR
ReR=ZB—Z-F+=-A=+—
B XSERTH - BUHE
iR [ £ 38 524,749,000 Tt (=
T — — 120,463,000 jT)
TEAER=_FE-——F+=A4
ST-HREABFEHENER
BHEE -

REFTEE(XREXRTE
BHeEREREXK

R-ZZE——F5MA-+—-H &
SEHEUILHRIRREALARAC
EELE_AN\AWNS HEAETE
Ml L — 1% 2 HEHE
BRYREFTEEBRD HE -
JRZEZLE=FZE_FT_F
F+_PHBEETEKRE &
B BFKEE S Umbrom k2
Em-REBZIHENRES
27,500,000 xT(HH £ R
214,500,000 7T) » % R &
ERZZE——FXHAZHARERK °
BUME  AEERBE_Z—
—F+-A=+-HIEEERR
#£ 1F Umbro 7 88 # 0 i &
214,500,000 7T °

32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and
discontinued operations — consolidated

(a)

(b)

Disposal of land use rights

On 20 December 2011, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a third party in Heyuan
in relation to the disposal of certain land use rights in
Mainland China for a consideration RMB29,687,000
(equivalent to HK$36,931,000). As at 31 December
2012, a deposit of approximately HK$36,931,000 (2011:
HK$6,170,000) had been received and was included in
accruals and other payables. The transaction is not yet
2012. In this
connection, the land use rights with carrying amount
HK$24,749,000 (2011: HK$20,463,000) were classified
as non-current assets held for
December 2012.

completed as at 31 December

sale as at 31

Discontinued operations of Team & Sports
Group (“T&S Group”)

On 21 April 2011,
agreement with UIL for the early termination of the

the Group entered into an
distributor agreement dated 8 February 2007 which
granted T&S Group exclusive distribution rights of the
Umbro branded products in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan from March 2007 to
December 2020. The consideration for the surrender
of such distribution rights was US$27,500,000
(equivalent to HK$214,500,000) and this transaction
was completed on 2 June 2011. In this connection, the
Group recognised a gain on the termination of Umbro
distribution rights of HK$214,500,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2011.
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32 BEHEZERBEERER
IEREER — 6t

178

(b)

—E-—FER
2012 Annual Report

REFTEE(XREXETE
B zORIEE&EEEH

o RZE——FWMA=+—
B AEBHUILKEBESE
FTUBEREHE Bl RE
FTEEER=_F——FxAZ
HE-Z-—_—_HxA=1HHH
MUILKR HEAEERRHERY
LB S8 R REREET
SEALDHEERIEELB
ER QSR HR R o bR
9 Bk #% £ 55,000,000 7t (48
£ 7439,000,00078 7t) ° F Lk
EULBAREFTEERER
—E-——HEXAZHEZZE-—Z
FARA=THEHE S Umbrofm
BERNTEBRDHE  UE
REFTEBARELABE
R - BERBER=-ZT——FX
R-HZ=-Z—-—-—%xA=+H
HEZESLIER REBE=Z
——F+-A=T+-—HILEFEN
BRI REEBEXEREINE
B A 518,442,000 T (=&
——1%:20,558,000/8 7T) °

BIBERUILAT L8 1H% © Umbro
EmPHEBER-Z-—ZFX
A=tRE2EAL - At RE&
BUBHERT  HEEZARC
RIEEex® MHEEERAR
ApBEREEAR

KEEBEERERAT
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32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and
discontinued operations — consolidated

(Continued)

(b)

Discontinued operations of Team & Sports
Group (“T&S Group”) (Continued)

In addition, the Group entered into a Transition
Services Agreement with UIL and its related entities
on 21 April 2011, under which T&S Group will provide
services to UIL and its related entities for the period
from 2 June 2011 to 30 June 2012 to assist them in
avoiding disruption in the transition and operation of
the distribution business after the termination of
distribution rights by T&S Group. The fees for the
above services were US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$39,000,000). In this connection, UIL granted T&S
Group new non-exclusive distribution rights for the
distribution of Umbro branded products from 2 June
2011 to 30 June 2012 to enable T&S Group to provide
the above transition services. Transitional service is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
form 2 June 2011 to 30 June 2012. Such income was
the
operations during the year ended 31 December 2012

to HK$18,442,000 (2011:

recognised in results of the discontinued
and amounted
HK$20,558,000).

Pursuant to the agreements with UIL, the distribution
business of the Umbro products was wholly ceased on
30 June 2012. Therefore its results are presented as a
discontinued operation and its assets and liabilities are
classified as a disposal group in the consolidated
financial statements.
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32 BEHEZEARBEEREK 32
IR K )

Non-current assets held-for-sale and
discontinued operations (continued)

(b) REXFEB(REXTE (b) Discontinued operations of Team & Sports

H )2 O &I &5 %38 ) Group (“T&S Group”) (Continued)

REFTEB(LEAR)WEE The major classes of assets and liabilities of T&S

REBNTELSHEUNT: Group, the disposal group, are as follows:
R-E——-% R-E——F
+t=A=t-B +=A=+-H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
FTERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHEAREEEBERN  Assets directly associated with
BE: the disposal group:
— MEEBRFZE — property, plant and
equipment - 341
— 58 — inventory - 15,622
— EREGIRR — trade receivables 698 6,097
—Be BARER — deposit, prepayments and
H Ath FE U BR X other receivables — 21,623
— REeRBEELZEEY — cash and cash equivalents — 9,577
HEABNAERE Total assets of the disposal group 698 53,260
BEHEAREEEBEN Liabilities directly associated
B8E: with the disposal group:
— ERESIRAR — trade payables 123 1,027
— EtiRR R HA — accruals and
FE 15 #R 3K other payables 4,322 24195
— e HRAE — current income tax liabilities 1,625 1,612
HEARNEBEHRSE Total liabilities of the disposal
e group 600 26,834
i & 4 B i F Total net (liabilities)/assets of
(BfE)BELE the disposal group (5,372) 26,426
TE-CFFR KEEEEZERERAT
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32 BEHEZHERBHEEREL 32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and

<354 37 ) discontinued operations (Continued)

(b) XEXTEBIXREXTE (b) Discontinued operations of Team & Sports
B zeRILEEEE @ Group (“T&S Group”) (Continued)
TXHNERNEBXEFET Financial information relating to T&S Group for the
BEHBEER o« FIBERBEE LRI year is set out below. The income statement
4R A e Te 4 4 AR A W e o B distinguish discontinued operations from continuing
25 o operations.

—E-C=f —E——F
2012 2011
TERT FTHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
e 25 Revenue 10,656 113,099
HEM A Costs of sales (15,872) (78,271)
£ (18) /7 Gross (loss)/profit (5,216) 34,828
HER D HRAR Selling and distribution costs (3,447) (42,835)
—BRITBEAX General and administrative
expenses (207) (70,188)
Hitg g A Other income 17,986 20,574
Hit (B18) W= Other (losses)/gains
— FE (M) — net (Note) (422) 219,275
BERR Operating profit 8,694 161,654
MEWRA Finance income 67 251
BMEME Finance costs - (888)
BEWA(KA) — FHE Finance income/(costs) — net 67 (637)
R P 15 B4 AR A Profit before income tax 8,761 161,017
Frig Bl & Income tax credit - 610
BRI EEERR Profit from discontinued
operations 8,761 161,627
UTALTEEEAL Profit from discontinued
BE XK EF operations attributable to:
— AARREFEA — Equity holders of the
Company 8,761 186,345
— FERER — Non-controlling interests - (24,718)
8,761 161,627
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32 BEHEZERHEEREL 32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and

IEREEK

(b)

discontinued operations (continued)

REFTEE(XEXTE (b)
BRI EEEK @

B & -

HE-_T——F+-A=+-HIL#F
B &1k Umbro7 85 2 K &
214,500,00058 7t & A H fib (&

B)/ s — FE -

Discontinued operations of Team & Sports
Group (“T&S Group”) (Continued)

Note:

The gain on termination of Umbro distribution rights
amounting to HK$214,500,000 was included in other (losses)/
gains — net for the year ended 31 December 2011.

BZE
tZA=+—-RLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

—E-—_—F —_E——F

2012 2011

FTER TER

HK$’000 HK$’000

RERERE Operating cash flows 31,426 (587)
RERERE Investing cash flows 174 (1,750)
MEELRE Financing cash flows (41,157) (30,200)
BeRnEHsE Total cash flows (9,557) (32,537)
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32 BEHEZHERBHEEREL 32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and

182

<354 37 ) discontinued operations (Continued)

(b) XEXTEBIXREXTE (b) Discontinued operations of Team & Sports
B zeRILEEEE @ Group (“T&S Group”) (Continued)
ATABRIEEEEBNR D Expenses included in the discontinued operations are
mF: analysed as follows:

—E-C-f —E——F
2012 2011
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
5B 2 Purchase of finished goods 299 37,827
HERMEFEMNEEH  Changes in inventories of finished
goods 15,622 40,813
Y3 - #EsMRfE  Depreciation of property, plant and
e equipment 7 4,353
Y% - WEER®ME  Impairment of property, plant and
R E equipment 334 9,487
BREERE Impairment of intangible assets = 14,851
2% E 6N B 2 Auditor’s remuneration 631 1,087
EUESKRARZE (Write-back)/impairment of trade and
9 (#E) B — Dbills receivable, net
R (2,365) 13,568
FERBE — F8 Write-back of inventories, net - (1,086)
EEFEH (WA)  Deferred income tax (credit) - (610)

TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT

2012 Annual Report

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



S EMEM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 HAEE

H=

E——_H5+-H=+—-HB K&H

WEEAIREE(CR-——F &)

34 EE — x5EH

(a)

BERERE

REER  CAINERBENE
ARXWT:

33 Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2011: Nil).

34 Commitments — Group

(a)

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet
date but not yet provided for is as follows:

Y3 - MR NRIET Property, plant and equipment

ARERER

Contracted but not provided for

—F-=F —EF-—F
2012 2011
TR TR
HK$°000 HK$000
1,981 1,654

R-E-——-F+=-A=+—8 "
N5 B A [0 & TR A B K B B
VHMBARENEMER  E
BHMEAN42722,0008 T (=ZF
——1%:42,722,0008 T) °

RZE——ENA+RB K&
E & Shine GoldREEZHEAE
ARTZ— & Bl A58
BERBARALHEEAR
70,000,000 7t K9 7] # & &
5 M-ZE-—-—F+=-A=t-—
B AEECRBUTERKES
31,200,000/ 7t » It B E &
RBHETITRRKRE S
38,800,0007% Jt °

FRE  AEERZZE—=FZ
A-+-HRBE_HEELES
38,800,000 jt Ky 7] # B} &
g‘_;’, °

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had commitments
to inject additional capital into certain subsidiaries
established in Mainland China, totalling approximately
HK$42,722,000 (2011: HK$42,722,000).

On 16 August 2011,
agreement with Shine Gold and its beneficial owners,

the Group entered into an
pursuant to which the Group agreed to subscribe for
convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$70,000,000. As at 31 December 2012, the Group
had acquired convertible bonds of HK$31,200,000 and
had commitment to acquire the remaining convertible
bonds of HK$38,800,000.

Subsequent to year end, the Group acquired the
second tranche of convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$38,800,000 on 21 February 2013.
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34 Commitments — Group (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group
warehouses and office equipment under

leases various retail shops, offices,
non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal

rights. The future aggregate minimum lease payments

ZARGEHELAENT: under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
—F-=f =%
2012 2011
THERT THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FR Within one year 66,906 56,474

—FZREF Later than one year and not later

than five years 131,893 118,096
hFE#% Later than five years 13,081 30,405
211,880 204,975

THREEAEEREESES
R LT EBREEINEAES
(RAEE)WME) AL ZER
HEE-RERRKEEZER
BoLRSHECELAHEE
B RRATTHBELEEZS
BHNHEZEHE -

XEEEZERERAA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The above lease commitments only include
commitments for basic rentals, and do not include
commitments for additional rental payable (contingent
rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales
less the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it is
not possible to determine in advance the amount of

such additional rentals.
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EEFREESDNFRTHRE
ARERRERENE T

Ik 5 B BB X D Y 2B O RE

R-ZZE——FWHAZH AEBEHEUIL
2] & 0 LUK 831,200,000 T [6
UILKBREXTERAT(TXREDE
NA0%MBHE - WBER=-FT——F
ABZBREMK - L BE-Z——F
+tZA=+-HLEE FEERKE
&k HKE AR KR EHCOR EE
100% - WIEBE M ERL BEHHE X
EREKBAREFENEE - NI
BAH REMNFEREZNIRERE
515,586,0008 T - HE=-ZZT—— &
+t-A=+-HLEE ~EERIFE
12 1% #E 25 R 415,586,000 T R AN A
AEE A BRI 415,614,000
T (fsE21) - BE=ZE——F+=-A=
T-BLEFE RAEEEEREZN
SEHANRNBEEARGERENT S
BT

35 Changes in ownership interests in

subsidiaries without change of control
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

On 2 April 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with
UIL to acquire an additional 40% equity interest in Team &
Sports Limited (“T&S”) at a consideration of HK$31,200,000
from UIL. The acquisition was completed on 2 June 2011.
Thereafter, the Group’s equity interest in T&S and its
subsidiaries was increased from 60% to 100% during the
year ended 31 December 2011. The acquisition of the
additional interest did not result in change of control of T&S
and its subsidiaries. The carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests in T&S on the date of acquisition was
HK$15,586,000. The Group recognised a decrease in non-
controlling interests of HK$15,586,000 and a decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$15,614,000 during the year ended 31 December 2011
(Note 21). The effect of changes in the ownership interest of
T&S on the equity attributable to owners of the Company
during the year during the year ended 31 December 2011
is summarised as follows:

FEx
HK$’000
HEFEREZNIREE Carrying amount of non-controlling interests
disposed of 15,586
INTFEEREZNRE Consideration paid to non-controlling interests (31,200)
ERREINXZM Excess of consideration paid recognised
REBEDD within equity (15,614)

25 H
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36 MELIXS

AEERERABRELHESEMRLZ
AT Quinta Asia Limited (B 2 %
DNE)EH ZARAR-E——F+=
B=+—B# B XD A #58.56% K%
o KD A EER A Quinta Asia
Limited B &L ZR AT ©

BRREZSHMBHRXPEMEBD M

BEEN AKERBESBETU
TEEXS:

“F--5EH  ABEEERARLT
186

36 Related party transactions

The Group is controlled by Quinta Asia Limited (the
immediate holding company), a company incorporated in the
British Virgins Islands, which owns approximately 58.56% of
the Company’s shares as at 31 December 2012. The
Company’s directors regard Quinta Asia Limited as being the
ultimate holding company.

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant transactions
were carried out with related parties:

2012 Annual Report ~ Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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36 BEIRZ®

(@) HEERRRHK

36 Related party transactions (continued)

(@) Sales of goods and services

—E—_F —E——fF
2012 2011
FTET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEER: Sales of goods:
MEBARMERBKRRZESL  Entties controlled by non-controlling
EE: shareholder of a subsidiary:
— EBLEERLA — Amerseas Enterprises Ltd 21,800 35,248
— XEBREARCTR) — Amerseas Sporting Goods
BRAF (Heyuan) Co Ltd 11 6
— EMXRERERM — Guangzhou Tien Sung Sporting
BRAE Goods Co Ltd 26 11
—MRREREAM — Heyuan Tien Sung Sporting
BRAF Goods Co. Ltd 33 —
—XEBERARERAR — Tien Gee Sporting Goods Co. Ltd 491 —
—TSG (Bangkok) Ltd — TSG (Bangkok) Ltd 32 21
— REHK(ER) — TSG International Ltd
BRAH 826 1,094
MEARIMFERRKR: Non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary:
— Umbro International — Umbro International Limited up
Limited B £ to 2 June 2011
—2-—§5XAZH — 12,781
AEBEMNEE LT Associate of the Group:
— D-mop Limited — D-mop Limited 2,756 —
— EREEREEE — Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing
CTR)ERA A Factory (Heyuan) Co Ltd 4 188
HERW Sales of services:
MEARIMIFERRE Entity controlled by non-controlling
EHNERE: shareholder of a subsidiary:
— ZBLERRAT — Amerseas Enterprises Ltd
— MIWKA — processing income 697 493
26,713 49,842
RERBRERTHENE®K Goods and services are sold at prices mutually agreed

EE \m;
I E0

o

by both parties.

—E-—FER
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36 BEIRZ®@

(b) BEERKRRERH

36 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Purchases of goods and services

—8--5 =—=-—-%
2012 2011
FTERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEER: Purchases of goods:
WEARMEERRR: Non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary:
— Umbro International — Umbro International Limited up to
Limited B 2 2 June 2011
“2--F5XAZH - 1,941
AEENBEEDNR: Associate of the Group:
— Fu Jin Bowker — Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited
Company Limited 201,546 230,764
AEENBEATH Major shareholder of associate
TERR: of the Group:
— EREETERHERLA — Fu Hsun Fiber Industrial Co Ltd 32,584 58,565
BERYE: Purchases of services:
MEARMNEERRR: Non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary:
— XBRERRAT — Amerseas Enterprises Ltd
— B8 — subcontracting fee — 439
— Umbro International — Umbro International Limited
Limited
— HEEE(EZ — royalty (up to 2 June 2011)
“E-—-%xA=AH) — 8,478
234,130 300,187
EmkRFERELHENER Good and services are purchased at prices mutually
BE - agreed by both parties.
“E-CEFR XEEEERERLOA
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36 BEIRZ®

36 Related party transactions (Continued)

(c) BELAZFEWA (c) Interest income from an associate
—E-C-F —E——F
2012 2011
FTHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEBEMBE AT  Associate of the Group
— Shine Gold — Shine Gold Limited
Limited
AR ES Convertible bond (Note 26)
(B =£26) 1,564 590
& R (Kt 7£26) Loans (Note 26) 12,424 2,185
13,988 2,775

25 H
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36 BEARZ @ 36 Related party transactions (continued)
(d) SHE BEERRBEFRE (d) Year-end balances arising from sales/
E2ERER purchases of goods and services
—E-C—F —E——F
2012 2011
THER THER
HK$’000 HK$’000

FE W B & 75 KB (B Receivables from related parties

R EE R B 5 R X (included in trade receivables):
w) :
REBMBKEENE  Associate of the Group
— D-mop Limited — D-mop Limited 822 —
— EJEEZSLEE — Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Factory
£ CUR)BR (Heyuan) Co Ltd
NF] 2 34

MEBARIMIEEAR  Entities controlled by non-controlling

BREZEFNER shareholder of a subsidiary
— XBLEERR — Amerseas Enterprises Ltd
N 682 1,323
— X BREAR — Amerseas Sporting Goods
CAR) B R (Heyuan) Co Ltd
AR 8 3
— BMNXRERE — Guangzhou Tien Sung Sporting
RmBRAR Goods Co Ltd - 5
— TRXERE — Heyuan Tien Sung Sporting
AmERAT Goods Co Ltd 6 —
— AEBRERAm — Tien Gee Sporting Goods Co Ltd
BRAF 291 —
— TSG (Bangkok) = —TSG (Bangkok) Ltd
Ltd - 11
— REHEK —TSG International Ltd
(EIRR) B IR
NG 112 329

1,923 1,705

TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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36 BEARZ @ 36 Related party transactions (continued)
(d SHE BEERRBEFME (d) Year-end balances arising from sales/
E2FREHRE purchases of goods and services (Continued)
—g-=#% —8-—-%
2012 2011
THER FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000

FEBE 5 FIE (B Payables to related parties (included
REME SRR intrade payables):

w) :
REBWKE AT  Associate of the Group
— Fu Jin Bowker — Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited
Company
Limited 60,321 56,977

REBEMEEATK Major shareholder of associate

TERRE of the Group
— EE#ETE — Fu Hsun Fiber Industrial Co Ltd
BHERADE 3,708 9,316
64,029 66,293
—E-—F —E——F
2012 2011
THER FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE B E 5 FIE (B Payables to related parties (included
REGIRZ KX EM  in accruals and other payables):
EARARA) :
REBWKE AT  Associate of the Group
— Shine Gold — Shine Gold Limited
. Lmted 8981 4910
RER Yuen Chi Leung
— S EMEE — Consideration payable for acquisition
EfRE of Charmtech Group - 30,359
— Hfts — Others 1,242 1,239
1,242 31,598
MEREAEHEKELE AR —K All amounts are unsecured and payable within normal
BESEEHRIM - trade credit terms.

ZE-CEER AKEEEERERLT
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36 BEARZ @ 36 Related party transactions (continued)
(e) REBEINER (e) Loan from a related party
—F-=F —EF-—F
2012 2011
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

MB AT IEERKRKER Non-controlling shareholder of a

subsidiary
— RER — Yuen Chi Leung 7,500 7,500
EFAEER  RERERRE The loan is unsecured, interest free and only
REXASE-HERKEE K repayable on the unanimous demand of Yuen Chi
EBEREMERREBEREE Leung and the Group, which is to be repaid to both
f% 3R & R Ll F AR R o shareholders in their respective proportions of
outstanding shareholders’ loans at the time of
repayment.
() EHBEQATNER () Balances with an associated company
—B-=f 2%
2012 2011
FTET TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Shine Gold% & Shine Gold Group
— BRRES — Convertible bond 33,354 31,790
— B¥ . B#FANE  —Loans, including interest 173,493 107,245
BEENTANERREF8% (= The loans to an associate bear interest at 8% (2011:
T——F:8%) R AFER 8%) per annum and will not be repayable in the
RRT-EAREE - KR E coming twelve months. The convertible bond bears
FREBES% (ZF——F:5%) interest at 5% (2011: 5%) per annum.

e

TE-CZEER KEEEERERLT
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36 BEIRZ®
(90 EFMEBLARRE

BNHMBARREIHEER
RERAREMREER -

(hy TEEBEAEME

36 Related party transactions (Continued)

(9) Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

(h) Key management compensation

—E—_F —E——F

2012 2011

FAERT FTET

HK$’000 HK$’000

e AKZEE  Salaries, bonus and allowances 25,555 29,036
BIREF Retirement benefits

— REMREE — defined contribution schemes 162 96

25,717 29,132

37 HEBKEH

ERE AEER=-Z-Z=F-A=+
—BRBE_#t £ % %A38,800,000
8 Ty Shine Gold T RE% -

37 Events after balance sheet date

Subsequent to year end, the Group acquired the second
tranche of convertible bonds of Shine Gold with principal
amount of HK$38,800,000 on 21 February 2013.
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In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the

following expression have the following meanings:

“Board”

“Charmtech”

“Charmtech Group”

“Company”

“Connected Person”

“Diadora Products”

“Director(s)”

“Greater China”

“Group” or “we” or “our”

or “us”

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Main Board”

the board of Directors of the Company

Charmtech Industrial

75%-owned subsidiary of the Company

Limited, a

Charmtech and its subsidiaries

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited, an
exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 13

December 2005

has the meaning ascribed to it under the
Listing Rule

products bearing the Diadora trademark
and distributed in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macau

the director(s) of the Company

Mainland China, Macau, Hong Kong and
Taiwan region

the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in Mainland China

the date of commencement of dealings in
our Shares on the Main Board, which is on
Wednesday, 6 September 2006

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

the stock market operated by the Stock
Exchange prior to the establishment of the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (excluding the options market)
and which stock market continues to be
operated by the Stock Exchange in parallel
with the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (for avoidance of doubt,
the Main Board excludes the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange)
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NAWEEHRE AR

REFTREKBLRF

REFITAERDT » AAF
B-ZE-——FXAZHEB

ZEEMNBAT
TSG (BVI) Limited @ R
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TSG BVIZ2 5B AT

“Mainland China”

“OEM”

“Pre-IPO Share
Option(s)”

“RMB”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholders”

“Shine Gold”

“Shine Gold Group”

“Stock Exchange”

“T&S Group”

“T&S HK”

“TSG BVI”

“TSG Group”

“TSG International”

2012 Annual Report
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the People’s Republic of China, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

acronym for original

a business

equipment
that
manufactures or purchases from other

manufacturer,

manufacturers and possibly modifies goods
or equipment for branding and resale by
others

the options granted by the Company to
certain employees, among others, prior to
the listing of the Company

Renminbi, the lawful currency of Mainland
China

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company

shareholders of the Company

Shine Gold Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and is wholly owned by Mr. WONG Yiu
Sun as at the date of this annual report

Shine Gold Limited and its subsidiaries

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited

T&S HK and its subsidiaries

Team & Sports Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company commencing
from 2 June 2012

TSG (BVI)
incorporated

Limited, a
in the BVI,
shareholder of Win Sports

company
a substantial

TSG BVI and its subsidiaries

TSG International Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, being a wholly

owned subsidiary of TSG BVI

ZE-ZEER AREEERBERAF
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“uIr

“Umbro Distributor
Agreement”

“Umbro Group”

“Umbro Licence
Agreement”

“Umbro Products”

“US”

“Win Sports”

“Win Sports Group’

“Winor”

“Winor Group”

Umbro International Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom, a
substantial shareholder of T&S HK up to 2
June 2012

the distributor agreement dated 8 February
2007 and entered between Umbro
International Limited, one of the members
of the Umbro Group, and T&S HK in
respect of the sale and distribution of
Umbro Products in the Greater China and
purchases of Umbro Products from the
Umbro Group,
Licence Agreement

superseding the Umbro

Umbro International and its subsidiaries

the licence agreement entered into
between T&S HK and Umbro Licensing
Limited, a member of the Umbro Group,
on 24 May 2001 in respect of the sale and
distribution of Umbro Products in Mainland

China and Hong Kong

a selected range of sportswear and other
products bearing the Umbro brand and
distributed by the Group pursuant to the
Umbro Distributor Agreement

the United States of America

Win Sports Limited, a 75%-owned

subsidiary of the Company

Win Sports and its subsidiaries

Winor International Company Limited, being
an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of our
Company

Winor and its subsidiaries
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